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ITEM 1. Consolidated Financial Statements

CIT GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Unaudited) (dollars in millions except share data)

September 30, December 31,
2012 2011
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September 30, December 31,
2012 2011

Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 3674 $ 4332
Interest bearing deposits, including restricted balances of $1,083.8 and $869.9 at
September 30, 2012 and December 31, 20117 6,088.1 7,002.4
Investment securities 1,004.6 1,250.6
Trading assets at fair value derivatives 29.3 42.8
Assets held for sale/” 1,421.1 2,332.3
Loans (see Note 5 for amounts pledged) 20,383.4 19,885.5
Allowance for loan losses (397.9) (407.8)
Total loans, net of allowance for loan losses” 19,985.5 19,477.7
Operating lease equipment, net (see Note 5 for amounts pledged)) 12,072.0 11,991.6
Unsecured counterparty receivable 592.9 733.5
Goodwill 330.8 330.8
Intangible assets, net 37.3 63.6
Other assets 1,651.9 1,568.2
Total Assets $43,580.9 $45,226.7
Liabilities
Deposits $ 8,709.3 $ 6,193.7
Trading liabilities at fair value derivatives 81.9 66.2
Credit balances of factoring clients 1,224.9 1,225.5
Other liabilities 2,567.4 2,562.2
Long-term borrowings, including $1,438.0 and $3,203.8 contractually due within twelve
months at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively 22,906.5 26,288.1
Total Liabilities 35,490.0 36,335.7
Stockholders Equity
Common stock: $0.01 par value, 600,000,000 authorized
Issued: 201,263,311 and 200,980,752 at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 2.0 2.0
Outstanding: 200,849,536 and 200,660,314 at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011
Paid-in capital 8,491.0 8,459.3
(Accumulated deficit) / Retained earnings (290.0) 532.1
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (100.3) 92.1)
Treasury stock: 413,775 and 320,438 shares at September 30, 2012 and December 31,
2011 at cost (16.7) (12.8)
Total Common Stockholders Equity 8,086.0 8,888.5
Noncontrolling minority interests 49 2.5
Total Equity 8,090.9 8,891.0
Total Liabilities and Equity $43,580.9 $45,226.7

() The following table presents information on assets and liabilities related to Variable Interest Entities (VIEs) that are consolidated by the
Company. The difference between VIE total assets and total liabilities represents the Company s interests in those entities, which were
eliminated in consolidation. The assets of the consolidated VIEs will be used to settle the liabilities of those entities and, except for the
Company s interest in the VIEs, are not available to the creditors of CIT or any affiliates of CIT. In the following table, certain prior period
balances have been conformed to current period presentation.

Assets

Interest bearing deposits, restricted $ 6509 $ 5742
Assets held for sale 570.5 317.2
Total loans, net of allowance for loan losses 7,610.5 8,523.7
Operating lease equipment, net 4,427.1 4,285.4
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Total Assets $13,259.0 $13,700.5
Liabilities

Beneficial interests issued by consolidated VIEs (classified as long-term borrowings) $ 9,760.1 $ 9,875.5
Total Liabilities $ 9,760.1 $ 9,875.5

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CIT GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (Unaudited) (dollars in millions except per share data)

Quarters Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011

Interest income
Interest and fees on loans $ 366.1 $ 4942 $ 1,171.2 $ 1,715.6
Interest and dividends on investments 8.0 8.6 23.8 25.6
Interest income 374.1 502.8 1,195.0 1,741.2
Interest expense
Interest on long-term borrowings (773.7) (574.7) (2,421.0) (2,030.2)
Interest on deposits (38.4) (28.4) (110.0) (77.9)
Interest expense (812.1) (603.1) (2,531.0) (2,108.1)
Net interest revenue (438.0) (100.3) (1,336.0) (366.9)
Provision for credit losses 47.4) (51.5) (253.9)
Net interest revenue, after credit provision (438.0) (147.7) (1,387.5) (620.8)
Non-interest income
Rental income on operating leases 444 .4 409.0 1,329.2 1,238.1
Other income 81.2 242.8 474.6 746.6
Total non-interest income 525.6 651.8 1,803.8 1,984.7
Total revenue, net of interest expense and credit
provision 87.6 504.1 416.3 1,363.9
Other expenses
Depreciation on operating lease equipment (134.5) (124.3) 402.7) 437.7)
Operating expenses (237.5) (226.4) (701.0) (669.8)
Loss on debt extinguishments (16.8) (146.6) (61.2) (146.6)
Total other expenses (388.8) (497.3) (1,164.9) (1,254.1)
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes (301.2) 6.8 (748.6) 109.8
Provision for income taxes 2.9) (40.2) (70.6) (123.8)
Income (loss) before noncontrolling interests (304.1) (33.4) (819.2) (14.0)
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests,
after tax (0.8) 0.6 2.9) 2.9)
Net loss $ (304.9) $ (32.8) $ (822.1) $ (169
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Quarters Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
Basic loss per common share $ (152 $ (0.16) $ (4.09) $ (0.08)
Diluted loss per common share $ (1.52) $ (0.16) $ (4.09) $ (0.08)
Average number of common shares basic (thousands) 200,917 200,714 200,877 200,659
Average number of common shares diluted (thousands) 200,917 200,714 200,877 200,659

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CIT GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (Unaudited) (dollars in millions)

Nine Months Ended September

Quarters Ended September 30, 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011

Loss before noncontrolling interests $(304.1) $(33.4) $(819.2) $(14.0)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments 0.2) (20.2) (11.1) (29.2)
Changes in fair values of derivatives qualifying as cash flow
hedges 0.5 0.7 1.0
Net unrealized gains (losses) on available for sale securities 0.5 (7.4) 1.0 (1.5)
Changes in benefit plans net gain/(loss) and prior service
(cost)/credit 0.4 1.2 0.1
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 0.7 (27.1) (8.2) (29.8)
Comprehensive loss before noncontrolling interests (303.4) (60.5) (827.4) (43.8)
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling
interests (0.8) 0.6 2.9) 2.9)
Comprehensive loss $(304.2) $(59.9) $(830.3) $(46.7)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CIT GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY (Unaudited) (dollars in millions)
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(Accumulated  Accumulated

Deficit) Other Noncontrolling
Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive  Treasury Minority Total
Stock Capital Earnings Loss Stock Interests Equity
December 31, 2011 $2.0 $8,459.3 $ 532.1 $ (92.) $(12.8) $ 25 $8,891.0
Net income (loss) (822.1) 2.9 (819.2)
Other comprehensive loss, net
of tax (8.2) (8.2)
Amortization of restricted
stock, stock option and
performance shares expenses 30.8 3.9 26.9
Employee stock purchase plan 0.9 0.9
Distribution of earnings and
capital 0.5) 0.5)
September 30, 2012 $2.0 $8,491.0 $(290.0) $(100.3) $(16.7) $ 49 $8,090.9
December 31, 2010 $2.0 $8,434.1 $ 505.4 $ (9.6 $ 8.8) $2.3) $8,920.8
Net income (loss) (16.9) 2.9 (14.0)
Other comprehensive loss, net
of tax (29.8) (29.8)
Amortization of restricted
stock and stock option
expenses 194 3.7) 15.7
Employee stock purchase plan 0.3 0.3
Distribution of earnings and
capital 0.1 0.1
September 30, 2011 $2.0 $8,453.8 $ 488.5 $ (394) $(12.5) $ 0.7 $8,893.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CIT GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited) (dollars in millions)

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2012 2011

Cash Flows From Operations
Net loss $  (822.1) $ (169
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash flows from operations:

Provision for credit losses 51.5 253.9
Net depreciation, amortization and (accretion) 1,712.8 415.7
Net gains on equipment, receivable and investment sales (271.0) (384.8)
Loss on debt extinguishments 21.1 121.6
Provision for deferred income taxes 5.9 31.4
(Increase) decrease in finance receivables held for sale (45.5) 12.9
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Nine Months Ended September 30,

(Increase) decrease in other assets (157.1) 272.1
Decrease in accrued liabilities and payables (117.2) (305.4)
Net cash flows provided by operations 378.4 400.5
Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Loans originated and purchased (13,312.5) (15,225.4)
Principal collections of loans 11,538.2 16,719.8
Purchases of investment securities (13,961.2) (13,928.4)
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities 14,255.2 13,512.2
Proceeds from asset and receivable sales 3,404.6 2,524.0
Purchases of assets to be leased and other equipment (1,228.0) (1,080.5)
Net increase in short-term factoring receivables 5.8 (39.2)
Change in restricted cash (213.9) 528.0
Net cash flows provided by investing activities 488.2 3,010.5
Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Proceeds from the issuance of term debt 12,786.6 4,876.1
Repayments of term debt (17,509.3) (12,581.6)
Net increase in deposits 2,522.9 441.6
Collection of security deposits and maintenance funds 408.9 418.3
Use of security deposits and maintenance funds (269.7) (352.1)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (2,060.6) (7,197.7)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,194.0) (3,786.7)
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 6,565.7 8,650.4
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 53717 $ 4,863.7
Supplementary Cash Flow Disclosure

Interest paid $ 9723 $ 1,546.7
Federal, foreign, state and local income taxes (paid), net $ 7.1 $ (55.0)
Supplementary Non Cash Flow Disclosure

Transfer of assets from held for investment to held for sale $ 1,3429 $ 1,778.3
Transfer of assets from held for sale to held for investment $ 0.5 $ 133.3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

6 CIT GROUP INC

Table of Contents

CIT GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
NOTE1 BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CIT Group Inc. has provided financial solutions to its clients since its formation in 1908. We provide financing and leasing capital principally
for small businesses and middle market companies in a wide variety of industries and offer vendor, equipment, commercial and structured
financing products, as well as factoring and management advisory services. CIT became a bank holding company ( BHC ) in 2008 and is the
parent of CIT Bank, a state-chartered bank in Utah. We operate primarily in North America, with locations in Europe, South America and Asia.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Principles of Consolidation
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The accompanying consolidated financial statements include financial information related to CIT Group Inc., a Delaware Corporation, and its
majority owned subsidiaries, including CIT Bank (collectively, CIT orthe Company ), and those variable interest entities ( VIEs ) where the
Company is the primary beneficiary. Assets held in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not included in the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. These
consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the instructions to Form 10-Q for interim financial information and
accordingly, do not include all information and note disclosures required by generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of
America ( GAAP ) for complete financial statements. The financial statements in this Form 10-Q have not been audited by an independent
registered public accounting firm in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (U.S.), but in the opinion of
management include all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of CIT s financial position,
results of operations and cash flows in accordance with GAAP. These consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with our
current Form 10-K on file.

The consolidated financial statements include the effects of adopting Fresh Start Accounting ( FSA ) upon emergence from bankruptcy on

December 10, 2009, based on a convenience date of December 31, 2009 (the Convenience Date ), as required by GAAP. Accretion and

amortization of certain FSA adjustments are included in the Statements of Operations and Cash Flows. See the Company s Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 ( Form 10-K ), Note 1 Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Note 26
Fresh Start Accounting , for additional FSA and reorganization information.

The accounting and financial reporting policies of CIT Group Inc. conform to GAAP and the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ
from those estimates and assumptions. Some of the more significant estimates include: fresh start accounting, allowance for loan losses, loan
impairment, fair value determinations, lease residual values, goodwill and intangible assets, and deferred tax assets and liabilities. Additionally,
where applicable, the policies conform to accounting and reporting guidelines prescribed by bank regulatory authorities.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
Fair Value Measurement

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRS. The new guidance results in a consistent definition of fair value and
common requirements for measurement of and disclosure about fair value between U.S. GAAP and IFRS. The disclosure requirements also have
been enhanced. The most significant change requires entities, for their recurring Level 3 fair value measurements, to disclose quantitative
information about unobservable inputs used, a description of the valuation processes used by the entity, and a qualitative discussion about the
sensitivity of the measurements. New disclosures are required about the use of a nonfinancial asset measured or disclosed at fair value if its use
differs from its highest and best use. In addition, entities must report the level in the fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities not recorded at
fair value but where fair value is disclosed. The amendment became effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011, with early
adoption prohibited. The adoption of the guidance during the quarter ended March 31, 2012, did not affect the Company s financial condition and
resulted in additional fair value measurement disclosures.

Comprehensive Income

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05 to amend the guidance on the presentation of comprehensive income in FASB ASC Topic
220, Comprehensive Income that requires companies to present a single statement of comprehensive income or two consecutive statements. The
guidance makes the financial statement presentation of other comprehensive income more prominent by eliminating the alternative to present
comprehensive income within the statement of equity. The ASU became effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15,
2011. The adoption of the guidance during the quarter ended March 31, 2012 did not affect the Company s financial condition but added the
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss).

On December 23, 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-12, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Deferral of the Effective Date for
Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards
Update No. 2011-05. The ASU defers the requirement to present components of reclassifications of other comprehensive income on the face of
the income statement, while still requiring companies to adopt the other requirements contained in ASU No. 2011-05, as noted above.

Item 1: Consolidated Financial Statements 7
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CIT GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
Balance Sheet Offsetting Disclosure Requirements

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-11, Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities which creates new disclosure
requirements about the nature of an entity s rights of setoff and related arrangements associated with its financial instruments and derivative
instruments. The new disclosures will enable financial statement users to compare balance sheets prepared under U.S. GAAP and International
Financial Reporting Standards ( IFRS ), which are subject to different offsetting models. The disclosures will be limited to financial instruments
and derivatives subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or similar agreements and excludes loans unless they are netted in the
statement of financial condition. The amendments will affect all entities that have financial instruments and derivatives that are either offset in
the balance sheet or subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement regardless of whether they are offset in the
balance sheet. The ASU will require entities to disclose, separately for financial assets and liabilities, including derivatives, the gross amounts of
recognized financial assets and liabilities; the amounts offset under current U.S. GAAP; the net amounts presented in the balance sheet; the
amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement that were not included in the offset amount above, and the
reconciling amount.

The disclosure requirements are effective for annual and interim reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, with retrospective
application required. The Company is evaluating the impact of this amendment.

Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets Impairment Test

In July 2012, the FASB issued ASU No. 2012-02, Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment which amends the guidance in

ASC Topic 350 on testing indefinite-lived intangible assets other than goodwill for impairment. Under ASC 350-30, entities must test
indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment at least annually by calculating and comparing an asset s fair value with its carrying amount. An
impairment loss would be recorded for an amount equal to the excess of the asset s carrying amount over its fair value. ASU No. 2012-02
provides the option of performing a qualitative assessment before calculating the fair value of the asset, when testing an indefinite-lived
intangible asset for impairment. If an entity determines, on the basis of qualitative factors, that the fair value of an indefinite-lived intangible
asset is not more likely than not impaired, they would not need to calculate the fair value of the asset. The ASU does not revise the requirement
to test indefinite-lived intangible assets annually for impairment. In addition, the ASU does not amend the requirement to test these assets for
impairment between annual tests if there is a change in events or circumstances; however, it does revise the examples of events and
circumstances that an entity should consider in interim periods.

The guidance will be effective for annual and interim impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2012. As the
Company has no indefinite-lived intangible assets, adoption of this guidance will have no impact on the consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 2 LOANS

Finance receivables consist of the following:

Finance Receivables by Product (dollars in millions)

September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011

Loans $15,622.7 $15,663.6
Direct financing leases and leveraged leases 4,760.7 4,221.9
Finance receivables 20,383.4 19,885.5
Finance receivables held for sale 881.7 2,088.0
Finance receivables and held for sale receivables(!/ $21,265.1 $21,973.5

(1) Assets held for sale in the balance sheet includes finance receivables and operating lease equipment. As discussed in subsequent tables, since
the Company manages the credit risk and collections of finance receivables held for sale consistently with its finance receivables held for
investment, the applicable amount is presented.

The following table presents finance receivables by segment, based on obligor location:
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Finance Receivables (dollars in millions)

September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total
Corporate Finance $ 6,748.5 $1,051.9 $ 7,800.4 $ 5,870.0 $ 992.7 $ 6,862.7
Transportation Finance 1,247.4 543.5 1,790.9 1,063.2 423.8 1,487.0
Trade Finance 2,284.5 123.8 2,408.3 2,299.1 132.3 2,431.4
Vendor Finance 2,379.1 2,248.9 4,628.0 2,365.5 2,056.2 4,421.7
Consumer 3,745.8 10.0 3,755.8 4,670.9 11.8 4,682.7
Total $16,405.3 $3,978.1 $20,383.4 $16,268.7 $3,616.8 $19,885.5

8 CIT GROUP INC
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CIT GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

The following table presents selected components of the net investment in finance receivables.

Components of Net Investment in Finance Receivables (dollars in millions)

September 30, December 31,
2012 2011
Unearned income $(986.2) $(1,057.5)
Unamortized (discounts) (42.3) (42.3)
Net unamortized deferred costs and (fees) 57.4 39.8

Certain of the following tables present credit-related information at the class level in accordance with ASC 310-10-50, Disclosures about the
Credit Quality of Finance Receivables and the Allowance for Credit Losses. A class is generally a disaggregation of a portfolio segment. In
determining the classes, CIT considered the finance receivable characteristics and methods it applies in monitoring and assessing credit risk and
performance.

Credit Quality Information

The following table summarizes finance receivables by the risk ratings that bank regulatory agencies utilize to classify credit exposure and
which are consistent with indicators the Company monitors. Risk ratings are reviewed on a regular basis by Credit Risk Management and are
adjusted as necessary for updated information affecting the borrowers ability to fulfill their obligations.

The definitions of these ratings are as follows:

Pass finance receivables in this category do not meet the criteria for classification in one of the categories below.

Special mention a special mention asset exhibits potential weaknesses that deserve management s close attention. If left uncorrected, these
potential weaknesses may, at some future date, result in the deterioration of the repayment prospects.

10
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Classified a classified asset ranges from: 1) assets that exhibit a well defined weakness and are inadequately protected by the current sound
worth and paying capacity of the borrower, and are characterized by the distinct possibility that some loss will be sustained if the deficiencies
are not corrected to 2) assets with weaknesses that make collection or liquidation in full unlikely on the basis of current facts, conditions, and
values. Assets in this classification can be accruing or on non-accrual depending on the evaluation of these factors.

Finance Receivables’” by Risk Rating (dollars in millions)

Corporate Corporate Vendor Vendor
Finance Finance  Transportation Trade Finance Finance
Other SBL Finance Finance U.S. International  Commercial Consumer

Grade:
September 30, 2012
Pass $5,645.3 $167.9 $1,411.7 $2,001.8 $1,994.4 $2,194.1 $13,415.2 $3,819.0
Special mention 914.6 373.6 180.2 293.6 189.2 184.3 2,135.5 232.1
Classified accruing 448.9 105.2 143.7 85.7 146.1 76.5 1,006.1 245.2
Classified non-accrual 181.4 74.2 55.2 27.2 47.0 26.7 411.7 0.3
Total $7,190.2 $720.9 $1,790.8 $2,408.3 $2,376.7 $2,481.6 $16,968.5 $4,296.6
December 31, 2011
Pass $4,255.6 $279.9 $1,089.3 $2,019.1 $2,017.8 $2,058.8 $11,720.5 $5,580.1
Special mention 930.9 236.9 136.7 263.8 156.1 123.0 1,847.4 367.5
Classified accruing 735.6 135.0 216.0 73.2 131.9 67.3 1,359.0 397.0
Classified non-accrual 356.4 141.5 45.0 75.3 55.3 27.6 701.1 0.9
Total $6,278.5 $793.3 $1,487.0 $2,431.4 $2,361.1 $2,276.7 $15,628.0 $6,345.5

() Balances include $881.7 million and $2,088.0 million of loans in Assets Held for Sale at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011,
respectively, which are measured at the lower of cost or fair value. ASC 310-10-50 does not require inclusion of these finance receivables in
the disclosures above. However, until they are disposed of, the Company manages the credit risk and collections of finance receivables held
for sale consistently with its finance receivables held for investment, and Company data is tracked and used for management purposes on an
aggregated basis, as presented above. In addition to finance receivables, the total for Assets Held for Sale on the balance sheet also include
operating lease equipment held for sale, which are not included in the above table.
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CIT GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
Past Due and Non-accrual Loans

The table that follows presents portfolio delinquency status, regardless of accrual/non-accrual classification:

Finance Receivables’” Delinquency Status (dollars in millions)

30 59 Days 60 89 Days 90 Days or Total Past Total Finance
Past Due Past Due Greater Due Current Receivables(?)

September 30, 2012

11



Commercial
Other
Corporate Finance SBL

Corporate Finance

Transportation Finance
Trade Finance

Vendor Finance U.S.
Vendor Finance International
Total Commercial

Consumer

Total

December 31, 2011
Commercial

Other

Corporate Finance SBL

Corporate Finance

Transportation Finance
Trade Finance

Vendor Finance U.S.
Vendor Finance International
Total Commercial

Consumer

Total
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30 59 Days 60 89 Days 90 Days or Total Past Total Finance

Past Due Past Due Greater Due Current Receivables(?)
$ 1.0 $ 02 $ 322 $ 334 $ 7,156.8 $ 7,190.2
2.8 6.3 16.2 25.3 695.6 720.9
0.5 1.1 2.3 3.9 1,786.9 1,790.8
29.8 13.1 7.8 50.7 2,357.6 2,408.3
42.7 13.0 11.7 67.4 2,309.3 2,376.7
13.9 8.4 9.4 31.7 2,449.9 2,481.6
90.7 42.1 79.6 2124 16,756.1 16,968.5
147.5 86.5 248.2 482.2 3,814.4 4,296.6
$238.2 $128.6 $327.8 $ 694.6 $20,570.5 $21,265.1
$ 59 $ 25 $ 356 $ 440 $ 6,234.5 $ 6,278.5
7.7 7.2 27.7 42.6 750.7 793.3
1.8 34 0.7 5.9 1,481.1 1,487.0
60.8 2.3 1.2 64.3 2,367.1 2,431.4
47.7 18.9 15.7 82.3 2,278.8 2,361.1
15.7 6.0 5.6 27.3 2,249.4 2,276.7
139.6 40.3 86.5 266.4 15,361.6 15,628.0
246.0 123.0 395.1 764.1 5,581.4 6,345.5
$385.6 $163.3 $481.6 $1,030.5 $20,943.0 $21,973.5

() Balances include $881.7 million and $2,088.0 million of loans in Assets Held for Sale at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011,
respectively. In addition to finance receivables, Assets Held for Sale on the balance sheet also include operating lease equipment held for
sale, which are not included in the above table.

10 CIT GROUP INC
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The following table sets forth non-accrual loans and assets received in satisfaction of loans (repossessed assets). Non-accrual loans include loans
greater than $500,000 that are individually evaluated and determined to be impaired, as well as loans less than $500,000 that are delinquent

(generally for 90 days or more).

Finance Receivables on Non-accrual Status (dollars in millions)

Commercial
Other
Corporate Finance SBL

Corporate Finance

September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Held for Held for Held for Held for
Investment Sale Total Investment Sale Total
$181.1 $0.3 $181.4 $225.7 $130.7 $356.4
69.1 5.1 74.2 132.0 9.5 141.5

12
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September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011

Transportation Finance 552 55.2 45.0 45.0
Trade Finance 27.2 27.2 75.3 75.3
Vendor Finance U.S. 47.0 47.0 55.3 55.3
Vendor Finance International 249 1.8 26.7 25.6 2.0 27.6
Consumer 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.7 0.9
Total non-accrual loans $404.5 $7.5 $412.0 $559.1 $142.9 $702.0
Repossessed assets 15.5 9.7
Total non-performing assets $427.5 $711.7
Accruing loans past due 90 days or more

Government guaranteed Consumer $248.1 $390.3
Other 10.7 2.2
Total $258.8 $392.5

Payments received on non-accrual financing receivables are generally applied first against outstanding principal.
Impaired Loans

The Company s policy is to review for impairment finance receivables greater than $500,000 that are on non-accrual status. Consumer loans and
small-ticket loan and lease receivables that have not been modified in a troubled debt restructuring, as well as short-term factoring receivables,
are included (if appropriate) in the reported non-accrual balances above, but are excluded from the impaired finance receivables disclosure
below as charge-offs are typically determined and recorded for such loans when they are more than 120 150 days past due.

The following table contains information about impaired finance receivables and the related allowance for loan losses, exclusive of finance
receivables that were identified as impaired at the Convenience Date for which the Company is applying the income recognition and disclosure
guidance in ASC 310-30 (Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality), which are disclosed further below in this note.

Item 1: Consolidated Financial Statements 11
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Impaired Loans (dollars in millions)

Nine Months
Ended September 30,
September 30, 2012 2012 2011
Unpaid Average Average
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Recorded
Investment Balance Allowance Investment Investment
With no related allowance recorded:
Commercial
Corporate Finance Other $207.6 $231.5 $ $204.8 $ 150.1

13
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Nine Months
Ended September 30,
Corporate Finance SBL 383 50.7 41.1 42.0
Transportation Finance 12.6 304 6.9 8.3
Trade Finance 8.8 8.8 34.6 77.1
Vendor Finance U.S. 5.9 15.2 8.5 18.4
Vendor Finance International 12.7 29.1 10.0 13.9
With an allowance recorded:
Commercial
Corporate Finance Other 1224 142.6 40.1 113.1 111.6
Corporate Finance SBL 1.4 1.6 0.5 12.4 46.9
Transportation Finance 422 43.0 9.4 29.0 52.0
Trade Finance 18.4 20.5 4.0 13.8 28.6
Total Commercial Impaired Loans(”/ 470.3 573.4 54.0 474.2 548.9
Total Loans Impaired at Convenience Date(? 114.2 287.6 1.8 157.6 476.2
Total $584.5 $861.0 $55.8 $631.8 $1,025.1
Year ended
December 31,
December 31, 2011 2011
Unpaid Average
Recorded Principal Related Recorded
Investment Balance Allowance Investment
With no related allowance recorded:
Commercial
Corporate Finance Other $197.0 $ 298.7 $ $160.6
Corporate Finance SBL 38.3 70.7 41.3
Transportation Finance 6.6
Trade Finance 60.1 72.2 73.7
Vendor Finance U.S. 10.5 24.6 16.9
Vendor Finance International 8.0 20.7 11.6
With an allowance recorded:
Commercial
Corporate Finance Other 101.0 112.0 31.7 109.5
Corporate Finance SBL 31.9 34.7 7.4 43.9
Transportation Finance 45.6 58.1 9.0 50.7
Trade Finance 15.1 18.0 5.3 25.9
Total Commercial Impaired Loans 507.5 709.7 53.4 540.7
Total Loans Impaired at Convenience date(?/ 186.7 605.4 5.4 418.3
Total $694.2 $1,315.1 $58.8 $959.0

() Interest income recorded while the loans were impaired was not material for the quarters and year-to-date periods ended September 30,

2012 and 2011.

@) Details of finance receivables that were identified as impaired at the Convenience Date are presented under Loans and Debt Securities

Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality.

12 CIT GROUP INC
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Impairment occurs when, based on current information and events, it is probable that CIT will be unable to collect all amounts due according to
the contractual terms of the agreement. The Company has established review and monitoring procedures designed to identify, as early as

possible, customers that are experiencing financial difficulty. Credit risk is captured and analyzed based on the Company s internal probability of
obligor default (PD) and loss given default (LGD) ratings. A PD rating is determined by evaluating borrower credit-worthiness, including
analyzing credit history, financial condition, cash flow adequacy, financial performance and management quality. An LGD rating is predicated

on transaction structure, collateral valuation and related guarantees or recourse. Further, related considerations in determining probability of
collection include the following:

Instances where the primary source of payment is no longer sufficient to repay the loan in accordance with terms of the loan document;

Lack of current financial data related to the borrower or guarantor;

Delinquency status of the loan;

Loans that have been restructured pursuant to a Trouble Debt Restructuring;

Borrowers experiencing problems, such as operating losses, marginal working capital, inadequate cash flow or business interruptions;

Loans secured by collateral that is not readily marketable or that is susceptible to deterioration in realizable value; and

Loans to borrowers in industries or countries experiencing economic instability.
Impairment is measured as the shortfall between estimated value and recorded investment in the finance receivable. A specific allowance or
charge-off is recorded for the shortfall. In instances where the estimated value exceeds the recorded investment, no specific allowance is
recorded. The estimated value is determined using fair value of collateral and other cash flows if the finance receivable is collateralized, or the

present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the contract s effective interest rate. In instances when the Company measures
impairment based on the present value of expected future cash flows, the change in present value is reported in the provision for credit losses.

The following summarizes key elements of the Company s policy regarding the determination of collateral fair value in the measurement of
impairment:

Orderly liquidation value is the basis for collateral valuation;

Appraisals are updated annually or more often as market conditions warrant;

Appraisal values are discounted in the determination of impairment if the:

appraisal does not reflect current market conditions; or

collateral consists of inventory, accounts receivable, or other forms of collateral, which may become difficult to locate, collect or subject to
pilferage in a liquidation.

Loans Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality

15
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For purposes of this presentation, finance receivables that were identified as impaired at the Convenience Date are presented separately below.
The Company is applying the income recognition and disclosure guidance in ASC 310-30 (Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with
Deteriorated Credit Quality) to loans considered impaired under FSA at the Convenience Date.

Loans Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality (dollars in millions)

September 30, 2012() December 31, 20110
Allowance Allowance
for for

Carrying Outstanding Loan Carrying Outstanding Loan

Amount Balance? Losses Amount Balance(? Losses
Commercial $112.7 $282.9 $1.8 $185.6 $599.0 $5.4
Consumer 1.5 4.7 1.1 6.4
Total loans $114.2 $287.6 $1.8 $186.7 $605.4 $5.4

(1) The table excludes amounts in Assets Held for Sale with carrying amounts of $2 million and $117 million at September 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, and outstanding balances of $14 million and $286 million at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

(2} Represents the sum of contractual principal and interest at the reporting date, calculated as pre-FSA net investment plus inception to date

charge-offs.

Quarter Ended September 30, Quarter Ended September 30,
2012 2011

Net
Provision for Net Provision for Charge-offs
Credit Losses Charge-offs Credit Losses (Recoveries)

Commercial $(0.4) $(0.1) $(3.2) $ 4.6
Consumer 0.2) 0.2)
Total $(0.4) $(0.1) $(3.4) $44

Item 1: Consolidated Financial Statements 13
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Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended September
September 30, 2012 30, 2011
Net
Provision for Net Provision for Charge-offs
Credit Losses Charge-offs Credit Losses (Recoveries)
Commercial $(3.0) $0.6 $51.6 $101.0
Consumer 0.3 0.3 0.5) 0.5)
Total $(2.7) $0.9 $51.1 $100.5
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The following table presents the changes to the accretable discount related to all loans accounted for under ASC 310-30 (Loans and Debt
Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality). Amounts include discount relating to non-accrual loans, for which accretion has been
suspended.

Accretable Discount Activity for Loans Accounted for Under ASC 310-30 at Emergence Date (dollars in millions):

Nine Months Ended September

Quarters Ended September 30, 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Accretable discount, beginning of period $24.1 $1354 $ 80.0 $207.2
Accretion (1.9) (4.9) (6.7) (30.4)
Disposals/transfers(”/ (2.2) (12.2) (53.3) (58.5)
Accretable discount, end of period $20.0 $118.3 $ 20.0 $118.3

) Amounts include transfers of non-accretable to accretable discounts, which were not material for the quarters and year-to-date periods
ended September 30, 2012 and 2011.

Troubled Debt Restructurings

The Company periodically modifies the terms of finance receivables in response to borrowers difficulties. Modifications that include a financial
concession to the borrower are accounted for as troubled debt restructurings (TDRs).

CIT uses a consistent methodology across all loans to determine if a modification is with a borrower that has been determined to be in financial
difficulty and was granted a concession. Specifically, the Company s policies on TDR identification include the following examples of indicators
used to determine whether the borrower is in financial difficulty:

Borrower is in default

Borrower has declared bankruptcy

Growing doubt about the borrower s ability to continue as a going concern
Borrower has insufficient cash flow to service debt

Borrower is de-listing securities

Borrower s inability to obtain funds from other sources

Breach of financial covenants by the borrower

If CIT determines the borrower is in financial difficulty, then CIT utilizes the following criteria to determine whether a concession has been
granted to the borrower:

Assets used to satisfy debt are less than CIT s recorded investment in the receivable
Modification of terms interest rate changed to below market rate

Maturity date extension at an interest rate less than market rate

17
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The borrower does not otherwise have access to funding for debt with similar risk characteristics in the market at the restructured rate and
terms

Capitalization of interest

Increase in interest reserves

Conversion of credit to Payment-In-Kind (PIK)

Delaying principal and/or interest for a period of three months or more

Partial forgiveness of the balance

Modified loans that are classified as TDRs are individually evaluated and measured for impairment. Modified loans that meet the definition of a
TDR are subject to the Company s standard impaired loan policy, namely that non-accrual loans in excess of $500,000 are individually reviewed
for impairment, while non-accrual loans less than $500,000 are considered as part of homogenous pools and are included in the determination of
the non-specific allowance.

The recorded investment of TDRs at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 was $321.5 million and $445.2 million, of which 35% and
63%, respectively, were on non-accrual. Corporate Finance receivables accounted for 91% of the total TDRs at September 30, 2012 and 88% at
December 31, 2011. At September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, there were $6.1 million and $27.8 million, respectively, of commitments to
lend additional funds to borrowers whose loan terms have been modified in TDRs.

14 CIT GROUP INC
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The tables that follow present additional information related to modifications qualifying as TDRs that occurred during the quarters and nine
month periods ended September 30, 2012 and 2011.

Recorded investment of TDRs that occurred during the periods ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 (dollars in millions)

Nine Months Ended September

Quarters Ended September 30, 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011

Commercial

Corporate Finance Other $22.7 $34.4 $31.3 $ 70.2
Corporate Finance SBL 4.6 1.4 11.6 11.9
Transportation Finance 25.3
Trade Finance 5.6 19.2
Vendor Finance U.S. 0.2 0.8 2.4 2.8
Vendor Finance International 0.4 1.4 2.8
Total $27.9 $42.2 $46.7 $132.2

Recorded investment of TDRs at the time of default that experienced a payment default”’ in the periods presented, and for which the
payment default occurred within one year of the modification (dollars in millions)
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Quarters Ended September Nine Months Ended September

30, 30,

2012 2011 2012 2011
Commercial
Corporate Finance Other $ $0.1 $12.0 $ 0.1
Corporate Finance SBL 1.0 4.2 3.7 5.6
Transportation Finance 25.3
Vendor Finance U.S. 0.1 0.5
Vendor Finance International 0.1 0.1 0.7
Total $1.2 $4.3 $16.3 $31.7

) Payment default in the table above is one missed payment.

The financial impact of the various modification strategies that the Company employs in response to borrower difficulties is described below.
While the discussion focuses on current quarter amounts, the overall nature and impact of modification programs were comparable in the prior

year.

The nature of modifications qualifying as TDR s, based upon recorded investment at September 30, 2012, was payment deferral of 87%,
covenant relief and/or other of 7%, interest rate reductions and debt forgiveness of 6%;

Payment deferrals, the Company s most common type of modification program, result in lower net present value of cash flows and increased
provision for credit losses to the extent applicable. The financial impact of these modifications is not significant given the reduction to
recorded investment balances from FSA discount and the moderate length of deferral periods;

Interest rate reductions result in lower amounts of interest being charged to the customer, but are a relatively small part of the Company s
restructuring programs. Additionally, in some instances, modifications improve the Company s economic return through increased interest
rates and fees, but are reported as TDRs due to assessments regarding the borrowers ability to independently obtain similar funding in the
market and assessments of the relationship between modified rates and terms and comparable market rates and terms. The weighted average
change in interest rates for all TDRs occurring during the 2012 third quarter was immaterial;

Debt forgiveness, or the reduction in amount owed by borrower, results in incremental provision for credit losses, in the form of higher
charge-offs. While these types of modifications have the greatest individual impact on the allowance, the combined financial impact for

TDR s occurring during the quarter and the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and outstanding as of September 30, 2012 approximated
$0.9 million and $1.4 million, respectively, as debt forgiveness is a relatively small component of the Company s modification programs; and

The other elements of the Company s modification programs do not have a significant impact on financial results given their relative size, or
do not have a direct financial impact as in the case of covenant changes.

Item 1: Consolidated Financial Statements 15

Table of Contents

CIT GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

NOTE3 ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The following table presents changes in the allowance for loan losses.
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Allowance for Loan Losses and Recorded Investment in Finance Receivables (dollars in millions)

Beginning balance
Provision for credit losses
Other(?)

Gross charge-offs(2)
Recoveries

Allowance balance end of period

Beginning balance
Provision for credit losses
Other(?)

Gross charge-offs(2)
Recoveries

Allowance balance end of period

Beginning balance
Provision for credit losses
Other(?)

Gross charge-offs(2)
Recoveries

Allowance balance end of period

Beginning balance
Provision for credit losses
Other(?)

Gross charge-offs(2)
Recoveries

Allowance balance end of period
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Quarter Ended September 30, 2012

Corporate Transportation

Total

Trade Vendor Total
Finance Finance Commercial
$29.8 $ 84.6 $414.2
43 8.8
(3.2) 1.0 1.7
(3.2) (18.5) (35.5)
32 8.4 17.5
$30.9 $ 843 $397.9

Quarter Ended September 30, 2011

$35.3 $ 91.0 $424.0
4.4 2.5 46.8
@3.7) 3.1 (10.7)
4.3) (20.3) (70.2)
25 17.4 24.6
$34.2 $ 875 $414.5

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012

$414.2

1.7

(35.5)
17.5
$397.9

$424.0
474
(10.7)
(71.1)
24.9
$414.5

Transportation

Total

Trade Vendor Total

Finance Finance Commercial

$ 29.0 $ 873 $ 407.8
5.9 20.1 51.0
(1.4) 0.7 (4.6)
(6.6) (51.9) (106.7)
4.0 28.1 50.4

$ 30.9 $ 843 $ 397.9

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2011

$ 299 $ 58.6 $ 416.2
11.7 68.1 251.5
(3.3) 1.7) (14.7)

(14.6) (79.6) (315.5)
10.5 42.1 71.0
$ 342 $ 875 $ 4145

$ 407.8

51.5

(4.6)
(107.7)

50.9

$ 3979

$ 416.2

253.9
(14.7)
(318.8)

71.9

$ 4145

Table of Contents
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At September 30, 2012

Allowance balance

Loans individually
evaluated for impairment
Loans collectively
evaluated for impairment
Loans acquired with
deteriorated credit

quality(3)

Allowance balance end of
period

Other reserves(!)

Finance receivables:
Loans individually
evaluated for impairment
Loans collectively
evaluated for impairment
Loans acquired with
deteriorated credit
quality(3)

Ending balance
Percent of loans to total
loans

At September 30, 2011

Allowance balance

Loans individually
evaluated for impairment
Loans collectively
evaluated for impairment
Loans acquired with
deteriorated credit

quality(3)

Allowance balance end of
period

Other reserves(!)

Finance receivables:
Loans individually
evaluated for impairment
Loans collectively
evaluated for impairment
Loans acquired with
deteriorated credit
quality(3)

Ending balance
Percent of loans to total
loans
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Corporate Transportation Trade Vendor Total
Finance Finance Finance Finance Commercial Consumer Total
$ 406 $ 9.4 $ 4.0 $ $ 54.0 $ $ 54.0
205.8 25.6 26.9 83.8 342.1 342.1
1.3 0.5 1.8 1.8
$ 247.7 $ 350 $ 309 84.3 $ 3979 $ 3979
$ 144 $ 0.5 $ 7.4 $ 22.3 $ 22.3
$ 369.7 $ 5438 $ 272 $ 186 $ 4703 $ $ 4703
7,328.7 1,736.1 2,381.1 4,598.7 16,044.6 3,754.3 19,798.9
102.0 10.7 112.7 1.5 114.2
$7,800.4 $1,790.9 $2,408.3 $4,628.0 $16,627.6 $3,755.8 $20,383.4
38.3% 8.8% 11.8% 22.7% 81.6% 18.4% 100.0%
$ 342 $ 122 $ 10.1 $ $ 56.5 $ $ 56.5
223.7 19.0 24.1 85.7 352.5 352.5
3.7 1.8 5.5 5.5
$ 261.6 $ 312 342 87.5 $ 4145 $ 4145
$ 1338 $ 1.2 7.6 $ 22.6 $ 22.6
$ 2103 $ 5438 $ 876 $ 222 $ 3749 $ $ 3749
6,313.9 1,292.9 2,464.1 4,251.2 14,322.1 6,881.9 21,204.0
210.4 26.7 237.1 1.4 238.5
$6,734.6 $1,347.7 $2,551.7 $4,300.1 $14,934.1 $6,883.3 $21,817.4
30.9% 6.2% 11.7% 19.7% 68.5% 31.5% 100.0%

() Other reserves represents additional credit loss reserves for unfunded lending commitments, letters of credit and for deferred purchase
agreements, all of which is recorded in Other Liabilities.

2

30,2012, of which $8 million related to Corporate Finance and $3 million to Transportation Finance. Amounts charged directly to the
specific allowance for loan losses for the nine month period were $25 million of which $16 million related to Corporate Finance, $8 million
to Transportation Finance and the remainder to Trade Finance. Gross charge-offs include $40 million that were charged directly to the
specific allowance for loan losses for the September 30, 2011 quarter, of which $36 million related to Corporate Finance with the remainder
primarily related to Trade Finance. Amounts charged directly to the specific allowance for loan losses for the nine month period were $154

million, of which $142 million related to Corporate Finance and the remainder to Trade Finance.

Other also includes changes relating to sales and foreign currency translations.

Gross charge-offs include $11 million that were charged directly to the specific allowance for loan losses for the quarter ended September

21



Edgar Filing: CIT GROUP INC - Form 10-Q

() Represents loans considered impaired in FSA and are accounted for under the guidance in ASC 310-30 (Loans and Debt Securities Acquired
with Deteriorated Credit Quality).

NOTE 4 INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Investments include debt and equity securities. The Company primarily invests in U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. Government Agency
securities that typically mature in 91 days or less, and the carrying value approximates fair value. Debt securities also include Corporate-Foreign,
Foreign Government, and State and municipal securities. Equity securities include common stock and warrants.

Investment Securities (dollars in millions)

September 30, December 31,
2012 2011
Debt securities available-for-sale $ 768.0 $ 9372
Equity securities available-for-sale 14.4 16.9
Debt securities held-to-maturity(”) 137.5 211.3
Non-marketable equity securities carried at cost(? 84.7 85.2
Total investment securities $1,004.6 $1,250.6

() Recorded at amortized cost less impairment on securities that have credit-related impairment.

() Non-marketable equity securities are carried at cost less impairment and primarily consist of shares issued by customers during loan work
out situations or as part of an original loan investment.
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Debt and equity securities are classified based on management s intention on the date of purchase and assessed at each reporting date. Debt
securities classified as held-to-maturity represent securities that the Company has both the ability and intent to hold until maturity, and are
carried at amortized cost.

Debt securities and equity securities classified as available-for-sale are carried at fair value with changes in fair value reported in other
comprehensive income ( OCI ), net of applicable income taxes.

Non-marketable equity securities are carried at cost and periodically assessed for other-than-temporary impairment ( OTTI ).

The Company conducts and documents periodic reviews of all securities with unrealized losses to evaluate whether the impairment is OTTI. For
debt securities classified as held-to-maturity that are considered to have OTTI that the Company does not intend to sell and it is more likely than
not that the Company will not be required to sell before recovery, the OTTI is separated into an amount representing the credit loss, which is
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Operations and the amount related to all other factors, which is recognized in OCL. OTTI on debt
securities and equity securities classified as available-for-sale and non-marketable securities are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of
Operations in the period determined.

The following table presents interest and dividends on investments:

Interest and Dividend Income (dollars in millions)
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Quarters Ended September Nine Months Ended September

30, 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Interest $7.4 $8.4 $21.8 $24.4
Dividends 0.6 0.2 2.0 1.2
Total interest and dividends $8.0 $8.6 $23.8 $25.6

Realized investment gains totaled $5.0 million and $8.7 million for the quarters ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and exclude

losses from OTTI. Similarly, year to date gross realized investment gains were $28.7 million in 2012 and $43.3 million in the prior year period.

OTTI credit-related impairments on equity securities recognized in earnings were not material for the quarter and nine months ended September
30, 2012 and totaled $0.3 million and $7.7 million for the prior-year quarter and year to date, respectively. Impairment amounts in accumulated

other comprehensive income ( AOCI ) were not material at September 30, 2012 or December 31, 2011.

Securities Available-for-Sale

The following table presents amortized cost and fair value of securities available-for-sale ( AFS ) at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

Securities Available For Sale Amortized Cost and Fair Value (dollars in millions)

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value
September 30, 2012
Debt securities AFS
U.S. Treasury Securities $350.0 $ $ $350.0
U.S. Government Agency Obligations 400.0 400.0
Brazilian Government Treasuries 18.0 18.0
Total debt securities AFS 768.0 768.0
Equity securities AFS 12.9 1.5 14.4
Total securities AFS $780.9 $1.5 $ $782.4
December 31, 2011
Debt securities AFS
U.S. Treasury Securities $166.7 $ $ $166.7
U.S. Government Agency Obligations 672.7 672.7
Canadian Government Treasuries 97.8 97.8
Total debt securities AFS 937.2 937.2
Equity securities AFS 15.5 1.4 16.9
Total securities AFS $952.7 $14 $ $954.1
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Debt Securities Held-to-Maturity

The carrying value and fair value of securities held-to-maturity ( HTM ) at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 were as follows:

Securities Held To Maturity Carrying Value and Fair Value (dollars in millions)

September 30, 2012

Mortgage-backed securities

U.S. government-sponsored agency guaranteed
State and municipal

Foreign government

Corporate  Foreign

Total debt securities held-to-maturity
December 31, 2011

U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities
U.S. Government Agency Obligations
Mortgage-backed securities

U.S. government-sponsored agency guaranteed
State and municipal

Foreign government

Corporate  Foreign

Total debt securities held-to-maturity

Gross Gross
Carrying Unrecognized Unrecognized Fair
Value Gains Losses Value
$ 57.0 $3.6 $ $ 60.6
3.7 3.7
26.0 26.0
50.8 50.8
$137.5 $3.6 $ $141.1
$ 925 $ $(1.1) $ 914
49.8 3.2 53.0
0.4 0.4
19.6 19.6
49.0 49.0
$211.3 $3.2 $(1.1) $2134

The following table presents the amortized cost and fair value of debt securities HTM by contractual maturity dates:

Securities Held To Maturity Amortized Cost and Fair Value Maturities (dollars in millions)

Mortgage-backed securities(”
Total Due after 10 yeaf$
U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities
Total Due within 1 year
State and municipal

Due after 1 but within 5 years
Due after 5 but within 10 years
Due after 10 years®

Total

Foreign government

Due within 1 year

Due after 1 but within 5 years
Total

Corporate  Foreign

September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
$ 57.0 $ 60.6 $ 4938 $ 53.0
92.5 91.4
0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3
0.1 0.1

3.4 34

3.7 3.7 0.4 0.4
23.0 23.0 16.8 16.8
3.0 3.0 2.8 2.8
26.0 26.0 19.6 19.6
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September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Total Due after 5 but within 10 years 50.8 50.8 49.0 49.0
Total debt securities held-to-maturity $137.5 $141.1 $211.3 $2134

) Includes mortgage-backed securities of U.S. federal agencies.

@) Investments with no stated maturities are included as contractual maturities of greater than 10 years. Actual maturities may differ due to call
or prepayment rights.
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NOTE 5 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

The following table presents outstanding long-term borrowings, net of FSA. The FSA fair value adjustment is amortized as a cost adjustment
over the remaining term of the respective debt and is reflected in Interest Expense.

Long-term Borrowings (dollars in millions)

December 31,
September 30, 2012 2011

CIT Group Inc. Subsidiaries Total Total
Unsecured”
Revolving credit facility $  500.0 $ $ 500.0 $
Series C Notes (other) 5,250.0 5,250.0
Senior unsecured 6,500.0 6,500.0
Other debt 83.0 1.9 84.9
Total Unsecured Debt 12,333.0 1.9 12,334.9
Secured
Secured borrowings 10,571.6 10,571.6 10,408.0
Series A Notes 7% 5,834.8
Series C Notes 7% (exchanged) 7,959.2
Series C Notes (other) 2,000.0
Other debt 86.1
Total Secured Debt 10,571.6 10,571.6 26,288.1
Total Long-term Borrowings $12,333.0 $10,573.5 $22,906.5 $26,288.1

() The previously secured Revolving Credit Facility, Series C Notes and Other Debt became unsecured upon full redemption of Series A Notes
on March 9, 2012.

Unsecured
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As a result of redeeming the remaining Series A Notes during the 2012 first quarter, the Revolving Credit Facility and all of our Series C Notes
became unsecured.

Revolving Credit Facility

On August 25, 2011, CIT and certain of its subsidiaries entered into a Revolving Credit and Guaranty Agreement, among CIT Group Inc.,
certain subsidiaries of CIT Group Inc., as guarantors, the lenders party thereto from time to time and Bank of America, N.A., as administrative
agent, collateral agent and letter of credit issuer (the Revolving Credit Facility ). The total commitment amount under the Revolving Credit
Facility is $2 billion, consisting of a $1.65 billion revolving loan tranche and a $350 million revolving loan tranche that can also be utilized for
issuance of letters of credit. The Revolving Credit Facility matures on August 14, 2015 and will accrue interest at a per annum rate of LIBOR
plus a margin of 2.00% to 2.75% (with no floor) or Base Rate plus a margin of 1.00% to 1.75% (with no floor). The applicable margin will be
determined by reference to the long-term senior unsecured, non-credit enhanced debt rating of the Company by S&P and Moody s effective at
relevant times during the life of the Revolving Credit Facility. Due to the Company s credit rating upgrades in early 2012, the applicable margin
for LIBOR loans is 2.50% and the applicable margin for Base Rate loans is 1.50% at September 30, 2012.

The Revolving Credit Facility may be prepaid and re-borrowed from time to time at the option of CIT. The amount available to draw upon at
September 30, 2012 was approximately $1.4 billion. The unutilized portion of any commitment under the Revolving Credit Facility may be
reduced permanently or terminated by CIT at any time without penalty.

Once the Company redeemed all the remaining Series A Second-Priority Secured Notes ( Series A Notes ) during the 2012 first quarter, all the
collateral and subsidiary guarantees under the Revolving Credit Facility were released, except for subsidiary guarantees from eight of the
Company s domestic operating subsidiaries ( Continuing Guarantors ). Once the Revolving Credit Facility became unsecured, the collateral
coverage covenant was replaced by an asset coverage covenant (based on the book value of eligible assets of the Continuing Guarantors) of 2.0x
the sum of: (i) the committed facility size and (ii) all outstanding indebtedness (including, without duplication, guarantees of such indebtedness)
for borrowed money (excluding subordinated intercompany indebtedness) of the Continuing Guarantors, tested monthly and upon certain
dispositions or encumbrances of eligible assets of the Continuing Guarantors.

The Revolving Credit Facility is also subject to a $6 billion minimum consolidated net worth covenant of the Company, tested quarterly, and
limits the Company s ability to create liens, merge or consolidate, sell, transfer, lease or dispose of all or substantially all of its assets, grant a
negative pledge or make
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certain restricted payments during the occurrence and continuance of an event of default.
Series C Notes

In March 2011, the Company issued $2 billion of new Series C Notes, consisting of $1.3 billion of three year 5.25% fixed rate notes and $700
million of seven year 6.625% fixed rate notes.

In June 2011, the Company successfully completed an Exchange Offer and Consent Solicitation for outstanding 7% Series A Notes maturing in
2015, 2016, and 2017. As a result, $8.76 billion principal amount of Series C Notes (pre-FSA) with the same interest rate were issued in
exchange for the Series A Notes tendered and accepted.

In February 2012, the Company issued at par $3.25 billion aggregate principal amount of Series C Notes, consisting of $1.5 billion principal
amount of three-year 4.75% fixed rate notes due 2015 (the 2015 Notes ) and $1.75 billion principal amount of seven-year 5.50% fixed rate notes
due 2019 (the 2019 Notes, together with the 2015 Notes, the Notes ). The proceeds of the transaction were used, in conjunction with available
cash, to redeem the remaining Series A Notes in March 2012.

Once the Company s remaining Series A Notes were redeemed during the 2012 first quarter, all the collateral and subsidiary guarantees under the
Series C Notes were released and the notes became senior unsecured obligations.
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The Series C Notes Indentures limit the Company s ability to create liens, merge or consolidate, or sell, transfer, lease or dispose of all or
substantially all of its assets. Upon a Change of Control Triggering Event as defined in the Series C Indentures, holders of the Series C Notes
will have the right to require the Company, as applicable, to repurchase all or a portion of the Series C Notes at a purchase price equal to 101%
of the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of such repurchase.

During 2012, CIT redeemed or repurchased the $8.76 billion of 7% Series C Notes ($4.6 billion in the third quarter of 2012), which resulted in
the acceleration of over $1.3 billion of FSA discount accretion ($0.5 billion in the third quarter of 2012) that was recorded as additional interest
expense and also resulted in a loss on debt extinguishment of $61 million ($17 million in the third quarter of 2012).

Senior Unsecured Notes

In March 2012, CIT filed a shelf registration statement and issued at par $1.5 billion of senior unsecured notes that mature in 2018 and bear
interest at a rate of 5.25%.

In May 2012, CIT issued at par $1.25 billion of senior unsecured notes that mature in 2017 and bear interest at a rate of 5.00% and $750 million
of senior unsecured notes that mature in 2020 and bear interest at a rate of 5.375%. In August 2012, CIT issued at par $1.75 billion of senior
unsecured notes that mature in 2017 and bear interest at a rate of 4.25% and $1.25 billion of senior unsecured notes that mature in 2022 and bear
interest at a rate of 5.00%. The proceeds of these transactions were used in conjunction with available cash, to redeem the 7% Series C Notes in
2012.

These senior unsecured notes rank equal in right of payment with the Series C Notes and the Revolving Credit Facility. The Revolving Credit
Facility also benefits from certain subsidiary guarantees as described above.

Secured
Series A Notes

On December 10, 2009, pursuant to the Plan of Reorganization the Company issued $21.04 billion principal amount of its 7.0% Series A
Second-Priority Secured Notes with maturities each year from 2013 to 2017 (the Series A Notes ).

During the first quarter 2012, CIT redeemed the remaining $6.5 billion of Series A Notes, which resulted in the acceleration of $597 million of
FSA discount accretion that was recorded as additional interest expense and also resulted in a loss on debt extinguishments of $23 million
reflecting a portion of the underwriting fees on the issuance of $3.25 billion of Series C Notes in February 2012. The elimination of our
remaining Series A Notes resulted in all of CIT s Series C Notes and the Revolving Credit Facility becoming unsecured.

Secured Borrowings

Set forth below are borrowings and pledged assets primarily owned by consolidated variable interest entities. Creditors of these entities received
ownership and/or security interests in the assets. These entities are intended to be bankruptcy remote so that such assets are not available to
creditors of CIT or any affiliates of CIT until and unless the related secured borrowings have been fully discharged. These transactions do not
meet accounting requirements for sales treatment and are recorded as secured borrowings. Except as otherwise noted, pledged assets listed in the
following table as of December 31, 2011 were not included in the collateral available to lenders under the Revolving Credit Facility or the Series
A or C Notes described above. At September 30, 2012, the Revolving Credit Facility and Series C Notes were unsecured and there were no
Series A Notes outstanding.
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Secured Borrowings and Pledged Assets Summary (dollars in millions)

September 30, 2012 December 31, 20114
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Secured Pledged Secured Pledged
Borrowing Assets Borrowing Assets
Education trusts and conduits (student loans) $ 3,162.0 $ 3,264.4 $ 3,445.9 $ 3,772.4
GSI Facilities borrowings(”) 1,056.2 1,589.4 1,257.7 2,174.8
Trade Finance 411.2 1,615.5 483.1 1,405.6
Corporate Finance (SBL) 251.0 297.6 250.4 300.2
Other equipment secured facilities”/ 2,400.7 2,704.3 1,772.2 2,204.6
Subtotal Loans 7,290.1 9,471.2 7,209.3 9,857.6
Transportation Finance ~ Aircraf? 1,887.0 2,599.1 1,728.9 2,264.8
Transportation Finance Rail 140.7 146.0 144.5 148.4
GSI Facilities borrowings (Aircraft and Rail)(”) 1,132.8 2,095.6 1,151.4 2,084.0
Other structures 69.2 100.2 74.2 102.1
Subtotal Equipment under operating leases 3,229.7 4,940.9 3,099.0 4,599.3
FHLB borrowings 1.0 4.7 50.7 92.5
CIT Group Holdings 50.8 50.8 49.0 49.0
Total $10,571.6 $14,467.6 $10,408.0 $14,598.4

() At September 30, 2012 GSI Facilities borrowings were secured by $1.1 billion of student loans, $154.2 million of corporate loans, $112.8
million of small business lending loans, of which $526.7 million were classified as Assets Held for Sale, and $1.2 billion and $912.0 million
of aircraft and railcar assets, respectively, on operating leases. The GSI Facilities are described in Note 6  Derivative Financial Instruments.

) Includes facilities secured by equipment primarily in Vendor Finance and Corporate Finance and the associated secured debt.
() Secured financing facilities for the purchase of aircraft.

4 Pledged Assets as of December 31, 2011 has been conformed to current presentation, which includes restricted cash and investments.

Variable Interest Entities ( VIEs )
The Company utilizes VIEs in the ordinary course of business to support its own and its customers financing needs.

The most significant types of VIEs that CIT utilizes are ‘on balance sheet secured financings of pools of leases and loans originated by the
Company. The Company originates pools of assets and sells these to special purpose entities ( SPE s ), which, in turn, issue debt instruments
backed by the asset pools or sell individual interests in the assets to investors. CIT retains the servicing rights and participates in certain cash
flows. These VIEs are typically organized as trusts or limited liability companies, and are intended to be bankruptcy remote, from a legal
standpoint.

The main risks inherent in these secured borrowing structures are deterioration in the credit performance of the vehicle s underlying asset
portfolio and risk associated with the servicing of the underlying assets.

Investors typically have recourse to the assets in the VIEs and may benefit from other credit enhancements, such as: (1) a reserve or cash
collateral account that requires the Company to deposit cash in an account, which will first be used to cover any defaulted obligor payments, (2)
over-collateralization in the form of excess assets in the VIE, or (3) subordination, whereby the Company retains a subordinate position in the
secured borrowing which would absorb losses due to defaulted obligor payments before the senior certificate holders. The VIE may also enter
into derivative contracts in order to convert the debt issued by the VIEs to match the underlying assets or to limit or change the risk of the VIE.

With respect to events or circumstances that could expose CIT to a loss, as these are accounted for as on balance sheet secured financings, the
Company records an allowance for loan losses for the credit risks associated with the underlying leases and loans. As these are secured
borrowings, CIT has an obligation to pay the debt in accordance with the terms of the underlying agreements.

Generally, third-party investors in the obligations of the consolidated VIE s have legal recourse only to the assets of the VIEs and do not have
recourse to the Company beyond certain specific provisions that are customary for secured financing transactions, such as asset repurchase
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obligations for breaches of representations and warranties. In addition, the assets are generally restricted only to pay such liabilities.
NOTE 6 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As part of managing economic risk and exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and, in limited instances, credit risk, CIT enters into derivative
transactions in over-the-counter markets with other financial institutions. CIT does not enter into derivative financial instruments for speculative
purposes. Derivative instruments are generally collateralized with cash or highly liquid securities, such as U.S. treasury and government agency
securities.
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The Company continuously assesses its hedge requirements and establishes counterparty relationships to facilitate hedging. The Company s
current hedging strategies relate primarily to currency risk management of foreign operations. The Company utilizes cross-currency swaps and
foreign currency forward contracts to effectively convert U.S. dollar denominated debt to a foreign currency. These transactions are classified as
either foreign currency net investment hedges, or foreign currency cash flow hedges, with resulting gains and losses reflected in AOCI, a

separate component of equity. For hedges of foreign currency net investment positions, the forward method is applied whereby effectiveness is
assessed and measured based on the amounts and currencies of the individual hedged net investments versus the notional amounts and

underlying currencies of the derivative contract. For those hedging relationships where the critical terms of the entire debt instrument and the
derivative are identical and the credit-worthiness of the counterparty to the hedging instrument remains sound, there is an expectation of no

hedge ineffectiveness so long as those conditions continue to be met. The net interest differential is recognized on an accrual basis as an
adjustment to other income or as interest expense to correspond with the hedged position.

See Note 1 Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1in our December 31, 2011 Form 10-K for further description of the
Company s derivative transaction policies.

The following table presents fair values and notional values of derivative financial instruments:

Fair and Notional Values of Derivative Financial Instruments (dollars in millions)

September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011

Notional Asset Fair Liability Notional Asset Fair Liability

Amount Value Fair Value Amount Value Fair Value
Qualifying Hedges
Cross currency swaps net investment
hedges $ 2542 $ $(12.6) $ 406.2 $ 1.0 $ (3.3
Foreign currency forward exchange cash
flow hedges 21.4 (1.3) 146.7 6.9 0.2)
Foreign currency forward exchange net
investment hedges 1,408.7 7.4 (37.6) 1,387.0 31.0 (11.4)
Total Qualifying Hedges $1,684.3 $ 74 $(51.5) $1,939.9 $38.9 $(14.9)
Non-Qualifying Hedges
Cross currency swaps $ 6029 $ 34 $(11.7) $ 668.5 $ 6.1 $ 4.5)
Interest rate swaps 788.6 0.4 (44.3) 848.4 0.9 (42.0)
Written options 207.6 0.1) 114.1 0.1)
Purchased options 451.2 0.3 913.3 1.0
Foreign currency forward exchange
contracts 2,096.6 24.6 (25.8) 2,662.9 34.4 (19.6)
TRS 181.4 70.1
Equity Warrants 1.0 0.6 1.0 0.4
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September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011

Total Non-qualifying Hedges $4,329.3 $29.3 $(81.9) $5,278.3 $42.8 $(66.2)

Total Return Swap (TRS)

Two financing facilities with Goldman Sachs International (GSI) are structured as total return swaps (TRS), under which amounts available for
advances are accounted for as derivatives. Pursuant to applicable accounting guidance, only the unutilized portion of the TRS is accounted for as
a derivative and recorded at its estimated fair value.

On October 26, 2011, CIT Group Inc. ( CIT ) amended its existing $2.125 billion total return swap facility between CIT Financial Ltd. ( CFL ) and
Goldman Sachs International ( GSI ) in order to provide greater flexibility for certain assets to be funded under the facility. The size of the

existing CFL facility was reduced to $1.5 billion, and the $625 million formerly available under the existing CFL facility was transferred to a

new total return swap facility between GSI and CIT TRS Funding B.V. ( BV ), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CIT.

The aggregate notional amounts of the total return swaps of $181.4 million at September 30, 2012 and $70.1 million at December 31, 2011
represent the aggregate unused portions under the CFL and BV facilities and constitute derivative financial instruments. These notional amounts
are calculated as the maximum aggregate facility commitment amounts, currently $2,125.0 million, less the aggregate actual adjusted qualifying
borrowing base outstanding of $1,943.6 million at September 30, 2012 and $2,054.9 million at December 31, 2011 under the CFL and BV
facilities. The notional amounts of the derivatives will increase as the adjusted qualifying borrowing base decreases due to repayment of the
underlying asset-backed securities (ABS) to investors. If CIT funds additional ABS under the CFL or BV facilities, the aggregate adjusted
qualifying borrowing base of the total return swaps will increase and the notional amount of the derivatives will decrease accordingly.

Valuation of the derivatives related to the GSI facilities is based on several factors using a discounted cash flow (DCF) methodology, including:

CIT s funding costs for similar financings based on current market conditions;
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Forecasted usage of the long-dated CFL and BV facilities through the final maturity date in 2028; and

Forecasted amortization, including prepayment assumptions, due to principal payments on the underlying ABS, which impacts the amount of
the unutilized portion.

The following table presents the impact of derivatives on the statements of operations:

Derivative Instrument Gains and Losses (dollars in millions)

Nine Months Ended
Quarters Ended September 30, September 30,
Gain/
(Loss)
Recognized 2012 2011 2012 2011

Derivative Instruments

Non Qualifying Hedges
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Nine Months Ended
Quarters Ended September 30, September 30,
Other
Cross currency swaps income $(16.5) $ 92.1 $(12.0) $ 47.1
Other
Interest rate swaps income 2.1) 9.9) (3.4) (16.8)
Other
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts income (11.2) 112.5 (16.7) 43.7
Other
Equity warrants income 0.1 0.8) 0.2 (1.0)
Total derivatives income statement impact $(29.7) $193.9 $(31.9) $ 73.0
The following table presents the changes in AOCI relating to derivatives:
Changes in AOCI Relating to Derivatives (dollars in millions)
Derivatives
effective portion Total change in
recorded in OCI OCI for period
Contract Type
Quarter ended September 30, 2012
Cross currency swaps  net investment hedges $ 0.1 $ 0.1

Foreign Currency forward exchange cash flow hedges

Foreign Currency forward exchange net investment hedges (7.5) (7.5)
Total $ (74 $ (74
Quarter ended September 30, 2011

Cross currency swaps —net investment hedges $ 22 $ 22

Foreign Currency forward exchange cash flow hedges 0.2 0.2

Foreign Currency forward exchange net investment hedges 5.5) (5.5)
Total $ 3.1 $ 3.1
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012

Cross currency swaps net investment hedges $ (0.4) $ (0.4
Foreign Currency forward exchange cash flow hedges 0.6 0.6

Foreign Currency forward exchange net investment hedges (18.2) (18.2)
Total $(18.0) $(18.0)
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2011

Cross currency swaps — net investment hedges $ 1.1 $ 1.1

Foreign Currency forward exchange cash flow hedges 0.9 0.9

Foreign Currency forward exchange net investment hedges (17.3) 17.3)
Total $(15.3) $(15.3)

There was no effective portion of derivatives reclassified from AOCI to income or any hedge ineffectiveness recorded directly in income for the
quarters and year-to-date periods ended September 30, 2012 and 2011.
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NOTE 7 FAIR VALUE
Fair Value Hierarchy

The Company is required to report fair value measurements for specified classes of assets and liabilities. See Note I~ Business and Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies in our December 31, 2011 Form 10-K for further description of the Company s fair value measurement policy.

The Company characterizes inputs in the determination of fair value according to the fair value hierarchy as set forth in the tables below:

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis (dollars in millions)

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
September 30, 2012
Assets
Debt Securities AFS $ 768.0 $18.0 $ 750.0 $
Equity Securities AFS 14.4 14.4
Trading assets at fair value derivatives 29.3 29.3
Derivative counterparty assets at fair value 7.4 7.4
Total Assets $ 819.1 $32.4 $ 786.7 $
Liabilities
Trading liabilities at fair value derivatives $ (81.9) $ $ (81.9) $
Derivative counterparty liabilities at fair value (51.5) (51.5)
Total Liabilities $ (133.4) $ $ (133.4) $
December 31, 2011
Assets
Debt Securities AFS $ 9372 $ $ 937.2 $
Equity Securities AFS 16.9 14.0 29
Trading assets at fair value derivatives 42.8 42.8
Derivative counterparty assets at fair value 38.9 38.9
Total $1,035.8 $14.0 $1,021.8 $
Liabilities
Trading liabilities at fair value derivatives $ (66.2) $ $ (66.2) $
Derivative counterparty liabilities at fair value (14.9) (14.9)
Total $ (BL.1) $ $ (@8L1) $

At September 30, 2012 there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for financial assets or liabilities measured on a recurring basis.

The following table presents assets and liabilities for which a non-recurring change in fair value has been recorded:

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Non-recurring Basis (dollars in millions)

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using:

Total Gains
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 and (Losses)

Assets
September 30, 2012
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Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using:

Assets Held for Sale $ 2073 $ $ $ 2073 $(27.7)
Impaired loans 314 314 21.7)
Total $ 238.7 $ $ $ 2387 $(49.4)
December 31, 2011

Assets Held for Sale $1,830.8 $ $ $1,830.8 $(60.7)
Impaired loans 101.5 101.5 (33.7)
Total $1,932.3 $ $ $1,932.3 $(94.4)
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Loans are transferred from held for investment to held for sale ( HES ) at the lower of cost or fair value. At the time of transfer, a write-down of
the loan is recorded as a charge-off, if applicable and if related to credit deterioration. Once classified as HFS, the amount by which the carrying
amount exceeds fair value is recorded as a valuation allowance.

Impaired finance receivables (including loans or capital leases) of $500 thousand or greater that are placed on non-accrual status are subject to
periodic individual review in conjunction with the Company s ongoing problem loan management (PLM) function. Impairment occurs when,
based on current information and events, it is probable that CIT will be unable to collect all amounts due according to contractual terms of the
agreement. Impairment is measured as the shortfall between estimated value and recorded investment in the finance receivable.

Level 3 Gains and Losses

The tables below set forth a summary of changes in the estimated fair value of the Company s Level 3 financial assets and liabilities measured on
a recurring basis:

Changes in Fair Value of Level 3 Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured on a Recurring Basis (dollars in millions)

Equity
Securities
Available
Total Derivatives for Sale
December 31, 2011 $ $ $
Gains or losses realized/unrealized
Included in Other Income
Other, net
September 30, 2012 $ $ $
December 31, 2010 $17.6 $(0.3) $17.9
Gains or losses realized/unrealized
Included in Other Income 5.7 0.3 5.4
Other, net (primarily sales proceeds) (23.3) (23.3)
September 30, 2011 $ $ $

At September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 there were no Level 3 financial assets or liabilities measured on a recurring basis.
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FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying and estimated fair values of financial instruments presented below exclude leases and certain other assets and liabilities, for which
disclosure is not required.

Estimated Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities (dollars in millions)

September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Value Fair Value Value Fair Value

Assets
Trading assets at fair value  derivatives $ 29.3 $ 29.3 $ 42.8 $ 42.8
Derivative counterparty assets at fair value 7.4 7.4 38.9 38.9
Assets held for sale (excluding leases) 651.6 672.5 1,871.8 2,024.3
Loans (excluding leases) 15,213.9 15,610.9 14,927.4 15,153.9
Investment Securities 1,004.6 1,008.2 1,250.6 1,252.7
Other assets subject to fair value disclosure and
unsecured counterparty receivables!) 1,135.1 1,135.1 1,405.7 1,405.7
Liabilities
Deposits? (8,754.3) (8,977.6) (6,227.5) (6,283.8)
Trading liabilities at fair value derivatives (81.9) (81.9) (66.2) (66.2)
Derivative counterparty liabilities at fair value (51.5) (51.5) (14.9) (14.9)
Long-term borrowings(? (23,070.5) (24,120.0) (26,444.2) (27,840.1)
Other liabilities subject to fair value disclosure(?/ (1,973.5) (1,973.5) (2,049.2) (2,049.2)

() Other assets subject to fair value disclosure primarily include accrued interest receivable and miscellaneous receivables. These assets have
carrying values that approximate fair value generally due to the short-term nature and are classified as level 3. The unsecured counterparty
receivables primarily consist of amounts owed to CIT from GSI for debt discount, return of collateral posted to GSI and settlements resulting
from market value changes to asset-backed securities underlying the GSI Facilities.

) Deposits and long-term borrowings include accrued interest, which is included in ~ Other liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

() Other liabilities subject to fair value disclosure include accounts payable, accrued liabilities, customer security and maintenance deposits

and miscellaneous liabilities. The fair value of these approximates carrying value and are classified as level 3.
Assumptions used to value financial instruments are set forth below:

Derivatives  The estimated fair values of derivatives were calculated internally using observable market data and represent the net amount
receivable or payable to terminate, taking into account current market rates, which represent Level 2 inputs. See Note 6  Derivative Financial
Instruments for notional principal amounts and fair values.

Investment Securities Debt and equity securities classified as AFS are carried at fair value, as determined either by Level 1 or Level 2 inputs.
Debt securities classified as AFS included investments in U.S. Treasury and federal government agency securities and were valued using Level 2

34



Edgar Filing: CIT GROUP INC - Form 10-Q

inputs, primarily quoted prices for similar securities. Certain equity securities classified as AFS were valued using Level 1 inputs, primarily
quoted prices in active markets, while other equity securities used Level 2 inputs, due to being less frequently traded or having limited quoted
market prices. Debt securities classified as HTM are securities that the Company has both the ability and the intent to hold until maturity and are
carried at amortized cost and periodically assessed for OTTI, with the cost basis reduced when impairment is deemed to be
other-than-temporary. Equity investments without readily determinable fair values are carried at cost and are periodically assessed for OTTI,
with the cost basis reduced when impairment is deemed to be other-than-temporary.

Assets held for sale  Assets held for sale are recorded at lower of cost or fair value on the balance sheet. Most of the assets are subject to a
binding contract, current letter of intent or other third-party valuation, which are Level 3 inputs. For the remaining assets, the fair value is
generally determined using internally generated valuations or discounted cash flow analysis, which are considered Level 3 inputs. Commercial
loans are generally valued individually, while small-ticket commercial and consumer type loans are valued on an aggregate portfolio basis.

Loans  Since there is no liquid secondary market for most loans in the Company s portfolio, the fair value is estimated based on discounted cash
flow analyses, which are considered Level 3 inputs. In addition to the characteristics of the underlying contracts, key inputs to the analysis

include interest rates, prepayment rates, and credit spreads. For the commercial loan portfolio, the market based credit spread inputs are derived
from instruments with comparable credit risk characteristics obtained from independent third party vendors. For the consumer loan portfolio, the
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discount spread is derived based on the company s estimate of a market participant s required return on equity that incorporates credit loss
estimates based on expected and current default rates. As these Level 3 unobservable inputs are specific to individual loans / collateral types,
management does not believe that sensitivity analysis of individual inputs is meaningful, but rather that sensitivity is more meaningfully
assessed through the evaluation of aggregate carrying values of the loans. The fair value of loans at September 30, 2012 was $15.6 billion, which
is 102.6% of carrying value. The fair value of the commercial loans portfolio was $11.5 billion, 100.7% of carrying value, and the fair value of
the consumer portfolio was $4.1 billion, 108.3% of carrying value.

Impaired Loans The value of impaired loans is estimated using the fair value of collateral (on an orderly liquidation basis) if the loan is
collateralized, or the present value of expected cash flows utilizing the current market rate for such loan. As these Level 3 unobservable inputs

are specific to individual loans / collateral types, management does not believe that sensitivity analysis of individual inputs is meaningful, but
rather that sensitivity is more meaningfully assessed through the evaluation of aggregate carrying values of impaired loans relative to contractual
amounts owed (unpaid principal balance or UPB ) from customers. As of September 30, 2012, the UPB related to impaired loans, including loans
for which the Company is applying the income recognition and disclosure guidance in ASC 310-30 (Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with
Deteriorated Credit Quality), totaled $861 million. Including related allowances, these loans are carried at $529 million, or 61% of UPB. Of

these amounts, $366 million and $286 million of UPB and carrying value relate to loans with no specific allowance. The difference between

UPB and carrying value reflects cumulative charge-offs on accounts remaining in process of collection, FSA discounts and allowances. See Note

2 Loans for more information.

Deposits  The fair value of deposits was estimated based upon a present value discounted cash flow analysis. Discount rates used in the present
value calculation are based on the Company s average current deposit rates for similar terms, which are Level 3 inputs.

Long-term borrowings  Unsecured borrowings of approximately $11.9 billion par value at September 30, 2012, were valued based on quoted
market prices, which are Level 1 inputs. Approximately $7.9 billion of the secured borrowings at September 30, 2012, and the outstanding
amount under the Revolving Credit Facility utilized market inputs to estimate fair value, which are Level 2 inputs. Where market estimates were
not available for approximately $3.6 billion at September 30, 2012, values were computed using a discounted cash flow analysis with a discount
rate approximating current market rates for issuances by CIT of similar term debt, which are Level 3 inputs.

NOTE S8 REGULATORY CAPITAL

The Company and CIT Bank are each subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the Federal Reserve Bank ( FRB ) and
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ( FDIC ).
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Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require that the Company and CIT Bank each maintain minimum
amounts and ratios of Total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets, and of Tier 1 capital to average assets, subject to any agreement with
regulators to maintain higher capital levels. In connection with becoming a bank holding company in December 2008, the Company committed
to maintaining a minimum Total Risk Based Capital Ratio of 13%.

The calculation of the Company s regulatory capital ratios are subject to review and consultation with the Federal Reserve Bank, which may
result in refinements to amounts reported at September 30, 2012.
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Tier 1 Capital and Total Capital Components (dollars in millions)

Tier 1 Capital

Total stockholders equity

Effect of certain items in accumulated
other

comprehensive loss excluded from Tier 1
Capital

Adjusted total equity

Less: Goodwill?

Disallowed intangible assets”)
Investment in certain subsidiaries
Other Tier 1 components(?

Tier 1 Capital

Tier 2 Capital
Qualifying allowance for credit losses
and other reserves®®

Less: Investment in certain subsidiaries
Other Tier 2 components(¥

Total qualifying capital

Risk-weighted assets

Total Capital (to risk-weighted assets):

Actual

Required Ratio for Capital Adequacy
Purposes

Tier 1 Capital (to risk-weighted
assets):

Actual

Required Ratio for Capital Adequacy
Purposes

Tier 1 Leverage Ratio:

Actual

Required Ratio for Capital Adequacy
Purposes

CIT CIT Bank
September 30, December 31, September 30, December 31,
2012 2011 2012 2011
$ 8,086.0 $ 8,888.5 $2,369.3 $2,116.6
51.5 54.3 0.5) 0.3)
8,137.5 8,942.8 2,368.8 2,116.3
(338.0) (338.0)
(38.6) (63.6)
(34.7) (36.6)
(63.4) (58.1) (60.1) 91.5)
7,662.8 8,446.5 2,308.7 2,024.8
420.2 429.9 91.7 52.7
(34.7) (36.6)
0.7 0.3 0.2
$ 8,049.0 $ 8,839.8 $2,400.7 $2,077.7
$45,929.9 $44,816.5 $8,775.5 $5,545.9
17.5% 19.7% 27.4% 37.5%
13.0% 13.0% 8.0% 8.0%
16.7% 18.8% 26.3% 36.5%
4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%
17.4% 18.9% 21.4% 24.7%
4.0% 4.0% 15.0% 15.0%")
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(1

Goodwill and disallowed intangible assets adjustments also reflect the portion included within assets held for sale.

2

Includes the portion of net deferred tax assets that does not qualify for inclusion in Tier 1 capital based on the capital guidelines, the Tier 1
capital charge for nonfinancial equity investments and the Tier I capital deduction for net unrealized losses on available-for-sale marketable
securities (net of tax).

() Other reserves represents additional credit loss reserves for unfunded lending commitments, letters of credit, and deferred purchase
agreements, all of which are recorded in Other Liabilities.

4

Banking organizations are permitted to include in Tier 2 Capital up to 45% of net unrealized pretax gains on available-for-sale equity
securities with readily determinable fair values.

(5

The Company and CIT Bank each committed to maintaining certain capital ratios above regulatory minimum levels.

NOTE Y9 INCOME TAXES

The Company s third quarter tax provision of $2.9 million decreased from $40.2 million in the prior-year quarter. The decrease was primarily
driven by a reduction in foreign tax expense on international income and was mainly related to the change in geographic mix of earnings and a
benefit related to discrete items.

The Company s tax provision of $70.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 decreased from $123.8 million in the prior year
period. This decrease was primarily a result of the reduction in foreign tax expense on international income due to the change in the geographic
mix of earnings. The year to date provision reflects income tax expense on the earnings of certain international operations and no income tax
benefit recorded on the domestic losses. The Company has not recognized any tax benefit on its domestic losses due to uncertainties related to
future utilization of net operating loss carry-forwards. The actual year-end 2012 effective tax rate may vary from the currently projected tax rate
due to changes in the mix of domestic and international earnings.

The tax provision for the third quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2012 included $(2.1) million and $15.6 million, respectively, of
discrete tax expense (benefit) items. Included in the discrete items for the year to date period is $31.6 million of incremental taxes mainly
associated with international audit settlements and an
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increase in a U.S. deferred tax liability on certain indefinite life assets that cannot be used as a source of future taxable income in the assessment
of the domestic valuation allowance. The year to date tax provision also includes a $16 million reduction to the provision for income taxes
associated with the correction of certain foreign tax accruals relating to prior periods. The net discrete tax expense also included a tax benefit of
$146.5 million caused by a release of tax reserves established on an uncertain tax position taken on certain tax losses following a favorable
ruling from the tax authorities and a $98.4 million tax benefit associated with a tax position taken on a prior-year restructuring transaction which
was addressed during the second quarter. Both of the aforementioned benefits were fully offset by corresponding increases to the domestic
valuation allowance.

As of December 31, 2011, CIT had cumulative U.S. federal net operating loss carry-forwards (NOLs) of $4.0 billion. The release of the above
mentioned uncertain tax positions will allow for the recognition of approximately $605 million of additional U.S. federal NOLs. Excluding FSA
adjustments, which are not included in the calculation of U.S. federal taxable income, the Company generated a domestic pretax loss in the third
quarter and year-to-date of $6 million and $210 million, respectively, which will also increase the NOLs. Pursuant to Section 382 of the Internal
Revenue Code, the Company is generally subject to a $230 million annual limitation on the use of its $1.9 billion of pre-emergence NOLs.
NOLs arising in post-emergence years are not subject to this limitation absent another ownership change for U.S. tax purposes.
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Liabilities for Uncertain Tax Position

The Company s liability for uncertain tax positions totaled $313 million at September 30, 2012 and $549 million at December 31, 2011.
Management estimates that this liability may be reduced by up to $10 million within the next twelve months. The change in the balance since
December 31, 2011 occurred primarily in the second quarter and was comprised of two items: 1.) a reduction of $146.5 million caused by a
release of tax reserves established on an uncertain tax position taken on certain tax losses following a favorable ruling from the tax authorities,
and 2.) a reduction of $98.4 million associated with a tax position taken on a prior-year restructuring transaction which was addressed during the
quarter. Both of the aforementioned benefits were fully offset by corresponding increases to the domestic valuation allowance.

NOTE 10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)

The amounts included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income (Loss) are net of income taxes. The income taxes associated with changes in
benefit plans net gain/(loss) and prior service (cost)/credit and changes in fair values of derivatives qualifying as cash flow hedges were not
significant for the quarter and year-to-date periods ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011. The change in income taxes associated
with net unrealized gains on available for sale securities totaled approximately $0.3 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2012 and $(1.3)
million for the September 30, 2011 quarter and totaled $0.7 million and $1.0 million for the nine month periods ended September 30, 2012 and
2011, respectively.

The changes in benefit plans net gain/(loss) and prior service (cost)/credit reclassification adjustments impacting net income was $0.4 million
and $1.2 million for the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2012. These amounts were insignificant in the same prior year periods.
There were no reclassifications through income for the quarters and nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 for interest expense on
interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges. The reclassification adjustments for unrealized gains (losses) on investments recognized
through income were not significant for the quarters and nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011.

The Company has operations in Canada, Europe and other countries. The functional currency for foreign operations is generally the local
currency. The value of assets and liabilities of these operations is translated into U.S. dollars at the rate of exchange in effect at the balance sheet
date. Revenue and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates during the year. The resulting foreign currency translation gains
and losses, as well as offsetting gains and losses on hedges of net investments in foreign operations, are reflected in AOCI. Transaction gains
and losses resulting from exchange rate changes on transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency are included in
earnings.

During the quarter approximately $4.0 million of cumulative translation adjustments were recognized as a reduction to Other Income related to
the liquidation of an Australian Aerospace legal entity.
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STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)

The following table details the components of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss:

Components of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) (dollars in millions)

September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Gross Income Net Gross Income Net
Unrealized Taxes Unrealized Unrealized Taxes Unrealized
$(53.7) $ 0.1 $ (53.6) $(54.9) $ 0.1 $(54.8)
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September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011

Changes in benefit plan net gain/(loss) and

prior service

(cost)/credit

Foreign currency translation adjustments (48.8) (48.8) (37.7) (37.7)
Changes in fair values of derivatives

qualifying as cash flow hedges (0.1) (0.1) (0.8) 0.8)
Unrealized net gains (losses) on available

for sale securities 3.7 (1.5) 2.2 2.0 (0.8) 1.2

Total accumulated other comprehensive loss $(98.9) $(1.4) $(100.3) $091.4) $(0.7) $(92.1)

NOTE 11 COMMITMENTS

The accompanying table summarizes credit-related commitments, as well as purchase and funding commitments:

Commitments (dollars in millions)

September 30, 2012

December 31,

Due to Expire 2011
Within After Total Total
One Year One Year Outstanding Outstanding

Financing Commitments
Financing and leasing assets $ 3755 $2,426.7 $2,802.2 $2,746.2
Letters of credit
Standby letters of credit 534 220.8 2742 209.5
Other letters of credit 50.8 0.3 51.1 89.5
Guarantees
Deferred purchase credit protection agreements 1,910.6 1,910.6 1,816.9
Guarantees, acceptances and other recourse obligations 17.9 4.6 22.5 25.6
Purchase and Funding Commitments
Aerospace manufacturer purchase commitments 637.0 7,408.1 8,045.1 8,033.1
Rail and other manufacturer purchase commitments 583.3 528.5 1,111.8 738.3

Financing Commitments

Financing commitments, referred to as loan commitments, or lines of credit, reflect CIT s agreements to lend to its customers, subject to the
customers compliance with contractual obligations. The table above includes approximately $0.5 billion of commitments at September 30, 2012
and $0.4 billion at December 31, 2011 for instances where the customer is not in compliance with contractual obligations, and therefore CIT

does not have the contractual obligation to lend. As financing commitments may not be fully drawn, expire unused, be reduced or cancelled at

the customer s request, and require the customer to be in compliance with certain conditions, total commitment amounts do not necessarily reflect
actual future cash flow requirements.

At September 30, 2012, substantially all financing commitments were senior facilities. Most of the Company s undrawn and available financing
commitments are in Corporate Finance.

The table above excludes uncommitted revolving credit facilities extended by Trade Finance to its clients for working capital purposes. In
connection with these facilities, Trade Finance has the sole discretion throughout the duration of these facilities to determine the amount of
credit that may be made available to its clients at any time and whether to honor any specific advance requests made by its clients under these
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credit facilities.

The table above also excludes unused cancelable lines of credit to customers in connection with select third-party vendor programs, which may
be used solely to finance additional product purchases, the total of which was not
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material for either period presented. These uncommitted lines of credit can be reduced, canceled or denied funding by CIT at any time without
notice. Management s experience indicates that customers related to vendor programs typically exercise their line of credit only when they need
to purchase new products from a vendor and do not seek to exercise their entire available line of credit at any point in time.

Letters of Credit

In the normal course of meeting the needs of clients, CIT sometimes enters into agreements to provide financing and letters of credit. Standby
letters of credit obligate the issuer of the letter of credit to pay the beneficiary if a client on whose behalf the letter of credit was issued does not
meet its obligation. These financial instruments generate fees and involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of amounts
recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. To minimize potential credit risk, CIT generally requires collateral and in some cases additional
forms of credit support from the client.

Deferred Purchase Agreements

A Deferred Purchase Agreement ( DPA ) is provided in conjunction with factoring, whereby CIT provides a client with credit protection for trade
receivables without purchasing the receivables. The trade terms are generally sixty days or less. If the client s customer is unable to pay an
undisputed receivable solely as the result of credit risk, then CIT purchases the receivable from the client. The outstanding amount of DPAs is

the maximum potential exposure that CIT would be required to pay under all DPAs. This maximum amount would only occur if all receivables
subject to DPAs default in the manner described above, thereby requiring CIT to purchase all such receivables from the DPA clients.

The methodology used to determine the DPA liability is similar to the methodology used to determine the allowance for loan losses associated
with the finance receivables, which reflects embedded losses based on various factors, including expected losses reflecting the Company s
internal customer and facility credit ratings. The liability recorded in Other Liabilities related to the DPAs totaled $6.1 million and $5.4 million
at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.

Purchase and Funding Commitments

CIT s purchase commitments relate primarily to purchases of commercial aircraft and rail equipment. Commitments to purchase new commercial
aircraft are predominantly with Airbus Industries ( Airbus ) and The Boeing Company ( Boeing ). In November 2011, an order was placed for
purchase of aircraft from Embraer S.A. ( Embraer ) with deliveries scheduled through 2015. CIT may also commit to purchase an aircraft directly
with an airline. Aerospace equipment purchases are contracted for specific models, using baseline aircraft specifications at fixed prices, which
reflect discounts from fair market purchase prices prevailing at the time of commitment. The delivery price of an aircraft may change depending
on final specifications. Equipment purchases are recorded at the delivery date. The estimated commitment amounts in the preceding table are
based on contracted purchase prices reduced for pre-delivery payments to date and exclude buyer furnished equipment selected by the lessee.
Pursuant to existing contractual commitments, 157 aircraft remain to be purchased from Airbus, Boeing and Embraer at September 30, 2012.
Aircraft deliveries are scheduled periodically through 2019. Commitments exclude unexercised options to order additional aircraft.

The Company s rail business entered into commitments to purchase railcars from multiple manufacturers in 2011 and in the second and third
quarters of 2012. The 2012 orders were for 7,000 railcars with deliveries scheduled through 2014. Pursuant to these and prior contractual
commitments, at September 30, 2012, approximately 8,500 railcars remain to be purchased. Rail equipment purchase commitments are at fixed
prices subject to price increases for certain materials.

NOTE 12 CONTINGENCIES
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CIT is currently involved, and from time to time in the future may be involved, in a number of judicial, regulatory, and arbitration proceedings
relating to matters that arise in connection with the conduct of its business (collectively, Litigation ). In view of the inherent difficulty of
predicting the outcome of Litigation matters, particularly when such matters are in their early stages or where the claimants seek indeterminate
damages, CIT cannot state with confidence what the eventual outcome of the pending Litigation will be, what the timing of the ultimate
resolution of these matters will be, or what the eventual loss, fines, or penalties related to each pending matter will be, if any. In accordance with
applicable accounting guidance, CIT establishes reserves for Litigation when those matters present loss contingencies as to which it is both
probable that a loss will occur and the amount of such loss can be reasonably estimated. Based on currently available information, CIT believes
that the results of Litigation that is currently pending, taken together, will not have a material adverse effect on the Company s financial
condition, but may be material to the Company s operating results or cash flows for any particular period, depending in part on its operating
results for that period. The actual results of resolving such matters may be substantially higher than the amounts reserved.

For certain Litigation matters in which the Company is involved, the Company is able to estimate a range of reasonably possible losses in excess
of established reserves and insurance. For other matters for which a loss is probable or reasonably possible, such an estimate cannot be
determined. For Litigation where losses are reasonably possible, management currently estimates the aggregate range of reasonably possible
losses as up to $320 million in
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excess of established reserves and insurance related to those matters, if any. This estimate represents reasonably possible losses (in excess of
established reserves and insurance) over the life of such Litigation, which may span a currently indeterminable number of years, and is based on
information currently available as of September 30, 2012. The matters underlying the estimated range will change from time to time, and actual
results may vary significantly from this estimate.

Those Litigation matters for which an estimate is not reasonably possible or as to which a loss does not appear to be reasonably possible, based
on current information, are not included within this estimated range and, therefore, this estimated range does not represent the Company s
maximum loss exposure.

The foregoing statements about CIT s Litigation are based on the Company s judgments, assumptions, and estimates and are necessarily
subjective and uncertain. Some of the Company s pending Litigation matters are described below.

Tyco Tax Agreement

In connection with the Company s separation from Tyco International Ltd ( Tyco ) in 2002, CIT and Tyco entered into a Tax Agreement pursuant
to which, among other things, CIT agreed to pay Tyco for tax savings actually realized by CIT, if any, as a result of the use of certain net

operating losses arising during the period that Tyco owned CIT (the Tyco Tax Attribute ), which savings would not have been realized absent the
existence of the Tyco Tax Attribute. During CIT s bankruptcy, CIT rejected the Tax Agreement, and Tyco and CIT entered into a Standstill
Agreement pursuant to which (a) CIT agreed that it would defer bringing its subordination claim against Tyco and (b) Tyco agreed that it would
defer bringing its damage claim against CIT while the parties exchanged information about CIT s tax position, including past usage and retention
of the various attributes on its consolidated tax return. Notwithstanding the Standstill Agreement, Tyco filed a Notice of Arbitration during the
second quarter of 2011, demanding arbitration of its alleged contractual damages resulting from rejection of the Tax Agreement. CIT filed an
adversary proceeding in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York (the Bankruptcy Court ), seeking to
subordinate Tyco s interests under section 510(b) of the Bankruptcy Code, which would result in Tyco being treated like equity holders under

CIT s confirmed Plan of Reorganization and receiving no recovery in connection with the termination of the Tax Agreement. In December, 2011,
the Bankruptcy Court denied the request to subordinate Tyco s interests (the Decision ). In September, 2012, the Second Circuit Court of Appeals
affirmed the Bankruptcy Court s decision, thus the arbitration will continue to proceed.

The amount of the federal Tyco Tax Attribute is approximately $794 million and the state Tyco Tax Attribute is approximately $180 million as
of the separation date. CIT s approximate current federal and state tax rates are currently 35% and 6.5%, respectively. CIT has recorded a
valuation allowance against its federal net deferred tax assets and substantially all of its state net deferred tax assets, which include the deferred
tax assets associated with the Tyco Tax Attribute, as the Company does not currently meet the criteria to recognize these assets. It is CIT s
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position that it has not received federal tax benefits from the Tyco Tax Attribute within the meaning of the Tax Agreement and that it is
speculative as to when, if ever, any such benefits may be realized in the future.

Le Nature s Inc.

CIT was the lead lessor under a syndicated lease of equipment (the Lease ) to Le Nature s Inc., a beverage bottler, for a newly-constructed
bottling facility in Phoenix, Arizona. In 2005, CIT and co-lessors funded $144.8 million, of which approximately $45 million was funded by
CIT. In 2006, CIT sold $5 million of its interest in the Lease.

In November 2006, amid allegations that Le Nature s had perpetrated a fraudulent scheme, creditors filed an involuntary bankruptcy against Le
Nature s in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Western District of Pennsylvania. Upon the commencement of the bankruptcy, Le Nature s
immediately ceased operations and a Chapter 11 trustee was appointed.

Subsequent to the commencement of the Le Nature s bankruptcy, certain co-lessors and certain parties that participated in CIT s and other
co-lessors interests in the Lease filed lawsuits against CIT and others to recover the balance of their respective investments, asserting various
claims including fraud, civil conspiracy, and civil Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act (RICO). Plaintiffs seek damages in
excess of $84 million as well as claims for treble damages under RICO. All but one of these actions has been consolidated for discovery
purposes in the United States District Court for the Western District of Pennsylvania (the Multidistrict Litigation ).

In October 2008, the Liquidating Trustee of Le Nature s commenced an action against, among others, Le Nature s lenders and lessors, including
CIT, asserting a variety of claims on behalf of the liquidation trust.

In October 2008, CIT commenced a lawsuit in the Superior Court for the State of Arizona, Maricopa County, against the manufacturer of the
equipment that was the subject of the Lease, certain of its principals, and the former CEO of Le Nature s, alleging, among other things, fraud,
conspiracy, civil RICO and negligent misrepresentation, seeking compensatory and punitive damages.

In February 2009, CIT commenced a lawsuit in the Superior Court for the State of Arizona, Maricopa County, against the former independent
auditing firm for Le Nature s, asserting professional negligence.

In May 2009, one of Le Nature s other equipment lessors commenced an action against CIT, as well as the equipment manufacturer, and certain
principals of the equipment
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manufacturer, in the Circuit Court of Wisconsin, Milwaukee County, asserting claims for fraud and misrepresentation.

In November, 2012, CIT entered into settlement agreements with the equipment manufacturer, the co-lessor plaintiffs and the Liquidating
Trustee resolving the most significant claims asserted against the Company in the Multidistrict Litigation. The settlements did not have a
material adverse effect on the Company s financial statements.

NOTE 13 BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION
Management s Policy in Identifying Reportable Segments

CIT sreportable segments are comprised of strategic business units that are aggregated into segments primarily based upon industry categories
and to a lesser extent, the core competencies relating to product origination, distribution methods, operations and servicing and the nature of
their regulatory environment. This segment reporting is consistent with the presentation of financial information to management.

Types of Products and Services
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CIT has five reportable segments: Corporate Finance, Transportation Finance, Trade Finance, Vendor Finance and Consumer. Corporate
Finance and Trade Finance offer secured lending as well as other financial products and services predominately to small and midsize companies.
These include secured revolving lines of credit and term loans, accounts receivable credit protection, accounts receivable collection, import and
export financing, factoring, debtor-in-possession and turnaround financing and receivable advisory services. Transportation Finance offers
secured lending and leasing products to midsize and larger companies across the aerospace, rail and defense industries. Vendor Finance partners
with manufacturers and distributors to offer secured lending and leasing products predominantly to small and mid-size companies primarily in
information technology, telecommunication and office equipment markets. Consumer includes a liquidating portfolio of predominately
government-guaranteed student loans.

Segment Profit and Assets

In the table that follows, Corporate and Other includes cash liquidity in excess of the amount required by the business units that management
determines is prudent for the overall company, loss on debt extinguishment and the prepayment penalties associated with debt repayments.

The third quarter 2012 Interest Expense included approximately $454 million of debt redemption charges ($1,316 million year to date) related to
the FSA accretion associated with the prepayment of $4.6 billion in debt during the quarter ($15.2 billion year to date). The third quarter of 2011
Interest Expense included $22 million of similar debt redemption charges ($232 million year to date).

Corporate and Other year to date 2012 operating expenses includes pre-tax corrections of approximately $14 million that were recorded in the
quarter ended June 30, 2012 for the establishment of an indemnification reserve related to pre-emergence asset sales and should have been
recorded in prior periods.

Vendor Finance year to date 2012 pre-tax earnings reflect $18 million of corrections recorded in the quarter ended March 31, 2012, $15 million
of which reduced Interest Income while the remaining amount reduced Other Income. In addition, the year to date income tax provision reflects
$16 million of corrections recorded in the second quarter that reduced tax expense. These corrections primarily related to our Mexican portfolio
and pertain to prior periods.

Management had concluded that these adjustments were not individually or in the aggregate material to the consolidated financial statements as
of or for the period ended March 31, 2012 or June 30, 2012 or to any preceding period as reported.
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CIT GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

Business Segments (dollars in millions)

Corporate Transportation Trade Vendor Commercial Total Corporate Total
Finance Finance Finance Finance Segments Consumer Segments and Other CIT
Quarter Ended
September 30,
2012
Interest income $ 140.1 $ 34.1 $ 15.0 $ 1351 $ 3243 $ 449 $  369.2 $ 49 $ 3741
Interest expense (146.9) (374.7) (24.1) (122.7) (668.4) (43.0) (711.4) (100.7) (812.1)
Provision for
credit losses 22.0 8.9 4.3) (8.8)
Rental income
on operating
leases 1.7 386.2 56.5 4444 4444 4444
Other income 24.6 18.4 39.0 (2.9) 79.1 1.2 80.3 0.9 81.2
Depreciation on
operating lease
equipment (1.0) (106.3) (27.2) (134.5) (134.5) (134.5)
(65.8) (43.5) (28.8) (87.0) (225.1) (10.0) (235.1) 2.4) (237.5)
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Interest income

Interest expense
Provision for
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before
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Corporate Transportation Trade Vendor Commercial Total Corporate Total
Finance Finance Finance Finance Segments Consumer Segments and Other CIT
(16.8) (16.8)
$ (25.3) $ (%47 $ (3.2) $ (57.0) $ (180.2) $ (6.9 $ (187.1) $(114.1) $ (301.2)
$ 189.0 $ 37.3 $ 218 $ 1852 $ 4333 $ 645 $ 4978 $ 50 $ 5028
(165.7) (202.3) (19.1) (109.9) (497.0) (42.3) (539.3) (63.8) (603.1)
(37.7) (2.2) (4.4) (2.5) (46.8) 0.6) (47.4) (47.4)
4.1 3422 62.7 409.0 409.0 409.0
93.1 57.0 40.9 60.1 251.1 4.9 256.0 (13.2) 242.8
(1.7) (90.7) (31.9) (124.3) (124.3) (124.3)
(51.5) (43.3) (28.6) (78.3) (201.7) (16.8) (218.5) (7.9 (226.4)
(146.6) (146.6)
$ 296 $ 98.0 $ 106 $ 854 $ 2236 $ 9.7 $ 2333 $(226.5) $ 6.8
$ 487.0 $ 103.6 $ 436 $ 4032 $ 1,037.4 $ 1436 $ 1,181.0 $ 140 $ 1,195.0
(496.0) (1,122.0) (74.2) (419.4) (2,111.6) (134.9) (2,246.5) (284.5) (2,531.0)
(8.4) (16.6) (5.9 (20.1) (51.0) 0.5) (51.5) (51.5)
6.8 1,143.8 178.6 1,329.2 1,329.2 1,329.2
302.3 46.2 108.6 0.3 457.4 21.4 478.8 (4.2) 474.6
3.3) (316.1) (83.3) (402.7) (402.7) (402.7)
(193.9) (132.0) (89.2) (241.5) (656.6) (30.4) (687.0) (14.0) (701.0)
(61.2) (61.2)
$ 945 $ (293.1) $ 171 $ (182.2) $ (397.9) $ (0.8) $ (398.7) $(349.9) $ (748.6)
$7.,800.4 $ 1,790.9 $ 2,408.3 $4,628.0 $16,627.6 $3,755.8 $20,383.4 $ $20,383.4
(1,224.9) (1,224.9) (1,224.9) (1,224.9)
110.8 371.4 398.1 880.3 540.8 1,421.1 1,421.1
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Corporate Transportation Trade Vendor Commercial Total Corporate Total
Finance Finance Finance Finance Segments Consumer Segments and Other CIT

Operating lease

equipment, net 14.6 11,847.4 210.0 12,072.0 12,072.0 12,072.0
Nine Months

Ended

September 30,

2011

Interest income $ 7177 $ 1234 $ 568 $ 6235 $ 1,521.4 $ 2042 $ 1,725.6 $ 156 $ 1,741.2

Interest expense (554.9) (663.6) (74.3) (408.4) (1,701.2) (144.0) (1,845.2) (262.9) (2,108.1)
Provision for

credit losses (163.0) (8.7) (11.7) (68.1) (251.5) 2.4 (253.9) (253.9)
Rental income

on operating

leases 14.1 1,007.2 216.8 1,238.1 1,238.1 1,238.1

Other income 362.6 110.1 120.3 145.8 738.8 10.7 749.5 2.9) 746.6
Depreciation on

operating lease

equipment (6.3) (280.2) (151.2) (437.7) (437.7) 437.7)
Operating

expenses (169.4) (120.4) (82.8) (234.3) (606.9) (49.7) (656.6) (13.2) (669.8)
Loss on debt

extinguishments (146.6) (146.6)
Income (loss)

before

(provision)

benefit for

income taxes $ 200.8 $ 16738 $ 8.3 $ 124.1 $ 501.0 $ 1838 $ 5198 $(410.0) $ 1098
Select Period

End Balances

Loans $6,734.6 $ 1,347.7 $ 2,551.7 $4,300.1 $14,934.1 $6,883.3 $21,817.4 $ $21,817.4
Credit balances

of factoring

clients 1,093.5 1,093.5 1,093.5 1,093.5
Assets held for

sale 399.6 60.1 367.8 827.5 686.3 1,513.8 1,513.8
Operating lease

equipment, net 40.1 10,923.3 2254 11,188.8 11,188.8 11,188.8
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Founded in 1908, CIT Group Inc. ( we , CIT orthe Company ), a Delaware Corporation, provides commercial financing and leasing products and
other financial services to small and middle market businesses across a wide variety of industries. CIT became a bank holding company ( BHC )
in December 2008 and CIT Bank, a Utah state-chartered bank, is the Company s principal bank subsidiary.

CIT operates primarily in North America, with additional locations in Europe, South America and Asia and has four commercial business
segments Corporate Finance, Trade Finance, Transportation Finance and Vendor Finance. We also own and manage a pool of liquidating
consumer loans, predominantly government guaranteed student loans, that are reported in the Consumer segment.

As of September 30, 2012 the Company had approximately 3,630 employees and over $43 billion in assets.

Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about
Market Risk contain financial terms that are relevant to our business. You can find a glossary of key terms used in Part I /tem I. Business Section
in our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 (the 2011 Form 10-K ).

Management uses certain non-GAAP financial measures in its analysis of the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. See
Non-GAAP Financial Measurements for a reconciliation of these to comparable accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America ( GAAP ) measures.

2012 PRIORITIES AND PROGRESS

Our 2012 priorities were developed to further advance our broader strategic initiatives centered on improving our financial condition, enhancing
our business model, and further improving our approach to risk management and control functions. During the third quarter, we reached an
important strategic milestone as we completed the refinancing or repayment of all of the nearly $31 billion of debt that was originally issued in
the 2009 restructuring. The following highlights some of our other accomplishments by priority:

1. Accelerate Growth and Business Development Initiatives

Increased new business activity. Both committed and funded volume increased from the prior-year period in all commercial segments. For
the nine months ended September 30, 2012, committed volume rose 26% to $7.7 billion. Third quarter 2012 committed new business
volume was $2.5 billion, up 7% from the prior-year quarter. For the nine months ended September 30, 2012 funded volume rose 33% to
$6.5 billion. Funded new business volume was $2.2 billion in the third quarter, a 16% increase from the prior-year quarter.

Increased commercial assets. Commercial financing and leasing assets increased $606 million from June 30, 2012, to $29.6 billion,
reflecting increases across all of the commercial segments. Commercial financing and leasing assets increased 6% since December 31, 2011
and 10% from a year ago.

2. Improve Profitability While Maintaining Financial Strength

While we reported a pre-tax loss of $749 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012, compared to pre-tax income of $110
million for the prior-year period, pre-tax income excluding debt redemption charges’ was $628 million, improved from $488 million in
2011.

We reported a pre-tax loss for the 2012 third quarter of $301 million driven by debt redemption charges®, compared to pre-tax income of
$7 million for the year ago quarter. We had pre-tax income excluding debt redemption charges of $170 million, down from $176 million in
the prior-year quarter, driven by lower net FSA accretion and other income.

() Pre-tax income excluding debt redemption charges is a non-GAAP measure. See  Non-GAAP Financial Measurements for reconciliation of
non-GAAP to GAAP financial information.

2 Debt redemption charges include accelerated fresh start accounting debt discount amortization, loss on debt extinguishments and
prepayment costs. See  Non-GAAP Financial Measurements for components.
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The weighted average coupon rates of outstanding deposits and long-term borrowings declined to 3.28% at September 30, 2012 from 4.84%
at September 30, 2011 and 3.83% at June 30, 2012.

Deposits increased, both in dollars and as a percentage of total CIT funding. As of September 30, 2012, total CIT deposits were $8.7 billion
and comprised 28% of total CIT funding, compared to 15% and 23% at September 30, 2011 and June 30, 2012, respectively.

We continue to maintain our excess capital position. While Tier 1 and Total Capital ratios at September 30, 2012 of 16.7% and 17.5%,
respectively, were down from June 30, 2012, and December 31, 2011, they remain well above regulatory requirements.

3. Expand Bank Assets and Funding

Total assets at CIT Bank increased to $11.6 billion from $7.5 billion at September 30, 2011 and $10.0 billion at June 30, 2012. Commercial
loans and leases of $7.3 billion increased from $2.9 billion at September 30, 2011 and $6.3 billion at June 30, 2012.

Third quarter committed loan volume of $1.7 billion at CIT Bank rose 38% from the year-ago period, of which nearly $1.4 billion was
funded.

CIT Bank deposits totaled $8.6 billion at September 30, 2012, up from $4.9 billion at September 30, 2011 and $7.1 billion at June 30, 2012.
The average interest rate on deposits at CIT Bank was 1.8% at September 30, 2012, down from 2.7% at September 30, 2011 and 2.0% at
June 30, 2012. The primary driver of the higher balances resulted from raising internet deposits. Internet deposits originated in 2012 also
included savings accounts. CIT Bank began offering on-line savings accounts in March 2012 to supplement the current range of CD
offerings to consumers.

During the remainder of 2012 and into 2013, we will focus on growing earning assets, managing expenses and growing CIT Bank assets and
deposits, as well as enhancing internal control functions and our relationships with our regulators. We are focused on meeting our profitability
target of 1.5 2% of AEA. While we have made progress on some of the elements, we recognize it may take longer to achieve our target asset
level given the current macro challenges and have therefore initiated a plan to reduce operating expenses in order to reach our operating expense
target of 2 2.25% of AEA. We plan to reduce the quarterly run rate by $15 million to $20 million, which will be phased in over 2013 through
improved operating efficiencies and expense reductions.

2012 FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Our 2012 operating results reflected increased commercial business activity and debt redemption and refinancing activities. We achieved our
goal of refinancing or redeeming all the approximately $31 billion of debt incurred in the 2009 restructuring, including the remaining $4.6
billion in the third quarter.

Net loss for the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2012 totaled $305 million and $822 million, $1.52 and $4.09 per diluted share,
largely influenced by accelerated FSA net discount/(premium) on debt extinguishments and repurchases, loss on debt extinguishments and
prepayment costs (collectively debt redemption charges ). These net losses compare to net losses of $33 million for the 2011 third quarter, $0.16
per diluted share, and $17 million, $0.08 per diluted share for the nine months ended September 30, 201 1. The 2012 amounts included debt
redemption charges® of $471 million in the third quarter and $1.4 billion year to date related to the redemption of high cost debt, while the
year-ago periods included debt redemption charges of $169 million for the quarter and $379 million for the year to date.

Pre-tax loss totaled $301 million for the 2012 third quarter and $749 million year to date, compared to pre-tax income of $7 million for the 2011
third quarter and $110 million for the nine months. Although down on a GAAP basis, pre-tax income excluding debt redemption charges was
$170 million for the quarter and $628 million for the nine months, respectively, compared to $176 million in the 2011 third quarter and $488
million for the prior-year nine months. Pre-tax income excluding debt redemption charges and net FSA accretion/amortization’® for the 2012
third quarter was $103 million and $377 million year to date, up from $91 million in the 2011 third quarter and $162 million for the prior-year
nine months, driven by lower funding costs and lower credit costs. The 2012 quarter and year to date included net FSA costs of $387 million and
$1.1 billion, primarily due to the acceleration of interest expense related to the redemption of high cost debt, while the 2011 third quarter and
year to date included net FSA benefits of $83 million and $200 million.
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2 Debt redemption charges include accelerated fresh start accounting debt discount amortization, loss on debt extinguishments and
prepayment costs. See  Non-GAAP Financial Measurements for components.

() Pre-tax income excluding debt redemption charges and net FSA accretion/amortization is a non-GAAP measure. See  Non-GAAP Financial
Measurements for reconciliation of non-GAAP to GAAP financial information.
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The following table presents pre-tax results adjusted for debt related transaction costs and FSA accretion. This is a non-GAAP measurement.

Impacts of FSA Accretion and Debt Refinancing Costs on Pre-tax Income (Loss) (dollars in millions)

Quarters Ended
Nine Months Ended
September 30,
September 30, June 30, September 30,
2012 2012 2011 2012 2011
Pre-tax income/(loss) reported $(301.2) $ 41.7) $ 6.8 $ (748.6) $ 109.8
Accelerated FSA net
discount/(premium) on debt
extinguishments and repurchases 4539 264.9 24 1,315.7 126.9
Debt related loss on debt
extinguishments 16.8 21.5 146.6 61.2 146.6
Debt related prepayment costs 20.0 105.0
Pre-tax income excluding debt
refinancing costs 169.5 244.7 175.8 628.3 488.3
Net FSA accretion (excluding debt
related acceleration) (66.5) (125.6) (84.9) (251.7) (326.8)
Pre-tax income excluding debt
refinancing costs and FSA net accretion $ 103.0 $ 119.1 $ 90.9 $ 376.6 $ 161.5

Net finance revenue™® ( NFR ) continues to be impacted by accelerated interest expense related to the redemption of high cost debt. The negative
NEFR for the 2012 third quarter and year to date was driven by the FSA discount accretion resulting from repayments of over $15 billion of high
cost debt for the nine months, including the remaining $4.6 billion in the third quarter. NFR was $184 million for the 2011 third quarter, $85
million in the 2012 second quarter and $434 million for the 2011 nine months. Average earning assets® ( AEA ) were $32.3 billion in the 2012
third quarter, down $1.4 billion from the year-ago quarter primarily due to asset sales and essentially unchanged from the 2012 second quarter as
commercial asset growth was slightly outpaced by a sale of student loans that occurred later in the second quarter. Average commercial earning
assets were $27.9 billion and rose from both comparative periods. NFR as a percentage of AEA ( net finance margin or NFM ) was (1.59%)
reflecting debt redemption costs, compared to 2.19% in the prior-year quarter and 1.05% in the second quarter of 2012. Excluding net FSA
accretion and debt prepayment costs, net finance margin was 2.97% for the 2012 third quarter, improved from 1.58% in the year-ago quarter and
essentially unchanged from the second quarter. The increase from the year-ago quarter was driven primarily by lower funding costs and the
reduction of low yielding assets. When compared to the prior quarter, the benefits of lower funding costs were essentially offset by lower interest
recoveries and other yield-related fees. Net operating lease revenue increased compared to the 2011 periods on higher assets in Transportation
Finance but declined modestly from the 2012 second quarter. For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, net finance margin excluding net
FSA accretion and debt prepayment costs was 2.65%, up from 1.46% last year. While other institutions may use net interest margin ( NIM ),
defined as interest income less interest expense, we discuss NFR, which includes operating lease results, due to their significant impact on
revenue and expense, including rental revenue and depreciation expense.

Provision for credit losses for the quarter ended September 30, 2012 was negligible, compared to $47 million in the year-ago quarter and $9
million last quarter. For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, the provision for credit losses was $52 million, down from $254 million last
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year. These favorable trends reflect the overall improvements in credit metrics, most notably the decline in net charge-offs.

Other income (excluding operating lease rentals) of $81 million decreased $162 million from the prior-year quarter and $63 million
sequentially, largely due to reduced gains on assets sold, lower counterparty receivable accretion, and fewer recoveries of loans charged off
pre-emergence. Factoring commissions of $33 million were down slightly from the prior-year quarter, reflecting lower factoring volume, and up
sequentially, due to seasonality. Year to date, other income totaled $475 million, down from $747 million last year, reflecting a decline in gains
on asset sales, recoveries of loans charged off pre-emergence and an increase in impairment charges on operating lease equipment held for sale.

Operating expenses were $238 million and included $5 million of restructuring-related costs. Operating expenses declined from the prior
quarter but were up modestly from the year-ago quarter, as a decline in professional fees was offset by increases in costs related to raising
deposits and technology costs. Headcount at September 30, 2012 was approximately 3,630, compared to approximately 3,480 a year ago and
approximately 3,570 at June 30, 2012. Year to date, operating expenses totaled $701 million, compared to $670 million last year.

4 Net finance revenue and average earning assets are non-GAAP measures; see Non-GAAP Financial Measurements for a reconciliation of
non-GAAP to GAAP financial information.
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Provision for income taxes in the third quarter was $3 million, significantly lower than recent quarters. The decline from prior periods is the
result of a greater proportion of earnings in countries with lower tax rates. For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, the provision for
income taxes was $71 million, down from $124 million a year ago.

Total assets at September 30, 2012 were $43.6 billion, up $0.8 billion from June 30, 2012, but down from $44.6 billion at September 30, 2011
as growth in the commercial portfolio was offset by sales and runoff of over $3 billion of government-guaranteed student loans over the past
four quarters. Commercial financing and leasing assets increased to $29.6 billion, up $2.6 billion from a year-ago and $0.6 billion from June 30,
2012. Total loans rose approximately $300 million during the quarter to $20.4 billion, but declined $1.4 billion from a year ago due to the
decline in consumer assets. Operating lease equipment increased to $12.1 billion, up nearly $1 billion from September 30, 2011 and
approximately $0.2 billion since June 30, 2012, reflecting aircraft and rail car deliveries. Cash and short-term investments increased $0.2 billion
from June 30, 2012 to $7.2 billion, as higher cash balances at CIT Bank, reflecting the success of raising deposits, more than offset a decline in
cash in operating subsidiaries.

Funded new business volume of $2.2 billion increased 16% from the prior-year quarter, while committed new business volume of $2.5 billion
increased 7%, reflecting strong increases in Corporate Finance and Vendor Finance. Compared to the second quarter, volume decreased in
Corporate Finance and Vendor Finance, as well as in Transportation Finance, which had fewer scheduled deliveries. Funded new business
volume was up 33% to $6.5 billion for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 compared to last year, while committed new business volume
of $7.7 billion was up 26% for the nine months ended September 30, 2012. Trade Finance factoring volume of $6.4 billion increased 8%
sequentially, reflecting seasonal trends, but declined by approximately 6% from the year-ago quarter. Factoring volume of $18.3 billion for the
nine months ended September 30, 2012, was down 4% from the 2011 period. The declines reflect slowing sales in the apparel sector.

Credit metrics reflected the continuation of favorable trends in the third quarter, as non-accrual loans declined both sequentially and from the
prior-year quarter, and net charge-offs remained at low levels. Net charge-offs were $18 million, or 0.36% as a percentage of average finance
receivables, versus $46 million (0.83%) in the year-ago quarter and $17 million (0.33%) in the prior quarter. Net charge-offs in our commercial
segments were 0.44% of average finance receivables, compared to 1.21% in the year-ago quarter and 0.42% in the prior quarter. These
continued favorable levels were driven largely by Corporate Finance, as net charge-offs in this segment were below both comparison periods.
The modest sequential increase in Vendor Finance charge-offs was related to the international portfolio, while the increase in Transportation
Finance resulted from a loan secured by aviation equipment. Non-accrual loans further improved and were $412 million, or 2.02% of finance
receivables at September 30, 2012. This amount compares to $914 million (4.19%) at September 30, 2011 and $455 million (2.26%) at June 30,
2012. Non-accrual loans as a percentage of finance receivables in the commercial segments were 2.48% at September 30, 2012, significantly
improved from 6.11% at September 30, 2011 and 2.80% at June 30, 2012. While there were sequential declines in both the Corporate Finance
and Trade Finance segments, there was an increase in Transportation Finance due to the addition of one loan secured by commercial aircraft.
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NET FINANCE REVENUE

The following tables present management s view of consolidated margin and include the net interest spread we make on loans and leased
equipment, in dollars and as a percent of average earning assets.

Net Finance Revenue (dollars in millions)

Quarters Ended
Nine Months Ended
September 30,
September 30, June 30, September 30,
2012 2012 2011 2012 2011
Interest income $ 3741 $ 4093 $ 5028 $ 1,195.0 $ 1,7412
Rental income on operating leases 444.4 445.5 409.0 1,329.2 1,238.1
Finance revenue 818.5 854.8 911.8 2,524.2 2,979.3
Interest expense (812.1) (639.2) (603.1) (2,531.0) (2,108.1)
Depreciation on operating lease
equipment (134.5) (130.7) (124.3) (402.7) 437.7)
Net finance revenue $ (128.1) $ 84.9 $ 1844 $ (409.5) $ 4335
Average Earning Assets ( AEA ) $32,251.2 $32,307.7 $33,668.6 $32,565.6 $34,517.1
As a % of AEA:
Interest income 4.64% 5.07% 5.97% 4.89% 6.73%
Rental income on operating leases 5.51% 5.51% 4.86% 5.44% 4.78%
Finance revenue 10.15% 10.58% 10.83% 10.33% 11.51%
Interest expense (10.07)% (7.91)% (7.16)% (10.36)% (8.15)%
Depreciation on operating lease
equipment (1.67)% (1.62)% (1.48)% (1.65)% (1.69)%
Net finance revenue (1.59)% 1.05% 2.19% (1.68)% 1.67%
As a % of AEA by Segment:
Corporate Finance 0.31)% 2.21% 1.41% (0.10)% 2.98%
Transportation Finance (1.75)% 0.82% 2.82% (1.86)% 2.05%
Trade Finance (3.43)% (1.3D)% 0.77% (3.65)% (1.67)%
Vendor Finance 3.24% 4.56% 8.36% 2.08% 6.81%
Commercial Segments (0.49)% 1.81% 3.40% (1.08)% 4.65%
Consumer 0.17% 1.76% 1.16% 0.22% 1.02%

Average earning assets are less than comparable balances displayed later in this document in ‘Select Quarterly Financial Data (Quarterly and
year to date Average Balances) due to the exclusion of deposits with banks and other investments and the inclusion of credit balances of

factoring clients.

Net finance revenue ( NFR ) and NFR as a percentage of AEA (Net Finance Margin or NFM ) are key metrics used by management to measure
the profitability of our lending and leasing assets. NFR includes interest and fee income on our loans and capital leases, interest and dividend
income on cash and investments, rental revenue and depreciation from our leased equipment as well as funding costs. Given our asset
composition includes a high level of operating lease equipment (37% of average earning assets), NFM is a more appropriate metric than net
interest margin ( NIM ) (a common metric used by other bank holding companies), as NIM does not fully reflect the earnings of our portfolio
because it includes the impact of debt costs of all our assets but excludes the net revenue (rental revenue less depreciation) from operating leases.
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NFR continues to be significantly impacted by FSA accretion. Net FSA accretion decreased NFR by $391 million during the current quarter,
which included higher debt FSA discount accretion resulting from repayments of high cost debt ( accelerated debt FSA discount accretion ),
compared to an increase of $56 million (including $20 million of prepayment costs) in the prior-year quarter and a decrease of $184 million in
the prior quarter. FSA accretion related to loans and operating leases has declined significantly from the prior year. See Fresh Start Accounting
section for FSA accretion details.

Interest income was down from the prior-year quarter and prior quarter primarily reflecting lower FSA accretion, a decline from the prior year in
average earning assets and lower interest recoveries. FSA accretion was $59 million in the current quarter, down from $150 million in the
prior-year quarter and $77 million in the prior quarter. See Fresh Start Accounting. The 2012 year-to date benefit of $227 million was well
below the prior year benefit of $618 million. The remaining accretable FSA discount on loans was $401 million at September 30, 2012, down
from $831 million at September 30, 2011 and $453 million at June 30, 2012. Compared to the prior-year quarter and year
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to date, average earning asset balances were down from 2011 largely due to asset sales and repayments.

Interest expense for 2012 included accelerated debt FSA discount accretion resulting from repayments of over $15 billion in high cost debt,
including $4.6 billion in the third quarter. Interest expense in the third quarter of 2012 included $454 million of accelerated FSA debt accretion,
while the prior-year quarter had $22 million (including $20 million of prepayment costs) and the prior quarter included $265 million. Year to
date, accelerated FSA debt accretion totaled $1.3 billion compared to $232 million (including $105 million of prepayment penalties) last year.

As aresult of our 2012 debt redemption activities and the increased proportion of deposits to our total funding, we reduced weighted average
coupon rates of outstanding deposits and long-term borrowings to 3.28% at September 30, 2012, from 4.84% at September 30, 2011 and 3.83%
at June 30, 2012.

The weighted average coupon rate of long-term borrowings at September 30, 2012 was 3.78%, compared to 5.14% at September 30, 2011 and
4.25% at June 30, 2012. Series C Notes and other senior unsecured notes, as well as secured financing transactions, are discussed in Funding,
Liquidity and Capital. See Select Financial Data section for more information on debt rates.

Deposits have increased, both in dollars and proportion of total CIT funding (28% at September 30, 2012 compared to 23% and 15% at June 30,
2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively). The weighted average rate of total CIT deposits at September 30, 2012 was 1.93%, compared to
3.05% at September 30, 2011 and 2.15% at June 30, 2012.

As detailed in the following table, NFR as a percentage of AEA included significant impact from net FSA accretion and debt prepayment
penalties.

Adjusted Net Finance Revenue as a % of AEA (dollars in millions)

Quarters Ended
September 30, 2012 June 30, 2012 September 30, 2011
Net finance revenue $(128.1) (1.59)% $ 84.9 1.05% $184.4 2.19%
FSA impact on net finance revenue 390.7 4.56% 184.1 1.97% (56.2) (0.82)%
Secured debt prepayment penalties 20.0 0.21%
Adjusted net finance revenue $ 262.6 2.97% $269.0 3.02% $148.2 1.58%

Nine Months Ended September 30,
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Nine Months Ended September 30,

2012 2011
Net finance revenue $ (409.5) (1.68)% $ 433.5 1.67%
FSA impact on net finance revenue 1,121.1 4.33% (113.5) (0.57)%
Secured debt prepayment penalties 105.0 0.36%
Adjusted net finance revenue $ 711.6 2.65% $ 425.0 1.46%

Net finance revenue and Adjusted net finance revenue are non-GAAP measures, see Non-GAAP Financial Measurements for a reconciliation of
non-GAAP to GAAP financial information.

NFM excluding FSA and prepayment penalties improved over the prior-year periods due to continued reduction in funding costs, a continued
shift in asset mix to higher-yielding commercial assets, as well as other yield related items. The sequential change is more relevant as it reflects
more consistent comparisons than with the prior year and is discussed in detail.

NFM excluding FSA and prepayment penalties was relatively flat to the prior quarter as the benefits from lower funding costs and higher
suspended depreciation were offset by a reduction in interest recoveries and other yield-related fees. Lower funding costs resulted from a full
benefit of our Q2 liability actions, increase in deposits, offset by negative carry on excess cash. Suspended depreciation on operating lease
equipment held for sale, described below, benefits NFM until the asset is sold. The benefits totaled approximately 30 basis points (bps) in the
current quarter, up from approximately 25 bps in the prior quarter. Interest recoveries, which resulted from non-accrual asset prepayments, sales
and assets returning to accrual status, and certain other yield-related fees were lower this quarter.

Third quarter 2012 new business yields in Corporate Finance remained relatively stable within product types. Utilization rates in air and railcar
assets in Transportation Finance remained strong as discussed below. Asset yields, which vary by vendor program, geography and types of
credit in Vendor Finance, were generally stable in the third quarter of 2012 but there was some pricing pressure.

NFM also continues to be impacted by our changing business mix, in which cash and short-term investments and student loans continue to
represent a significant but declining portion of the overall balance sheet. Continued growth in the relative proportion of commercial loans and
leases and further declines in non-accrual loan balances, have contributed to the improved margin.
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The following table sets forth the details on net operating lease revenue, before and after the impact of FSA:

Net Operating Lease Revenue as a % of Average Operating Leases (AOL) (dollars in millions)

Quarters Ended
Nine Months Ended
September 30,
September 30, June 30, September 30,
2012 2012 2011 2012 2011
Rental income on operating leases 14.81% 14.85% 14.84% 14.76% 14.90%
Depreciation on operating lease
equipment (4.48)% (4.36)% 4.51)% (4.47)% (5.27)%
Net operating lease revenue % 10.33% 10.49% 10.33% 10.29% 9.63%
Net operating lease revenue %,
excluding FSA 7.24% 7.26% 6.84% 7.11% 6.34%
Net operating lease revenue $ 3099 $ 31438 $ 2847 $ 9265 $ 8004
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Quarters Ended

Nine Months Ended
Average Operating Lease
Equipment ( AOL ) $12,002.6 $11,999.6 $11,023.6 $12,004.3 $11,076.9

Net operating lease revenue® increased in amount compared to the 2011 periods on higher assets in Transportation Finance and benefited from
lower depreciation expense in Vendor Finance (discussed further below). Sequentially, net operating lease revenue was down modestly. These
factors also drive the increases in net operating lease revenue as a percent of AOL. Net operating lease revenue also reflects a benefit from net
FSA accretion of $45 million, $47 million and $48 million for the quarters ended September 30, 2012, September 30, 2011 and June 30, 2012,
respectively and $142 million and $135 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Net operating lease revenue is primarily generated from the aircraft and rail transportation portfolios. Net operating lease revenue from these
portfolios improved from the prior-year quarter, reflecting higher asset balances and strong asset utilization. Commercial aircraft utilization rates
remain strong at 99% leased at September 30, 2012. In the rail portfolio, fleet utilization, including commitments, held steady at 98%, as rental
rates remain attractive.

In addition, the 2012 results compared to last year benefited from lower depreciation expense, primarily in the Vendor Finance business, as a
result of certain operating lease equipment being recorded as held for sale. Once a long-lived asset is classified as held for sale, depreciation
expense is no longer recognized, but the asset is evaluated for impairment with any such charge recorded in other income. As a result, net
operating lease revenue includes rental income on operating lease equipment classified as held for sale, but there is no related depreciation
expense. The amount of depreciation not recognized on operating lease equipment in assets held for sale totaled $26 million for the 2012 third
quarter, $23 million for the 2011 third quarter and $21 million last quarter. Year to date, suspended depreciation totaled $68 million for 2012 and
$48 million for 2011. The amount of impairment on operating lease assets held for sale totaled $27 million for the 2012 third quarter, $20
million for the 2011 third quarter and $29 million last quarter. Year to date, impairment on assets held for sale totaled $76 million for 2012 and
$40 million for 2011. Operating lease equipment in assets held for sale totaled $532 million at September 30, 2012, $208 million at September
30, 2011 and $546 million at June 30, 2012, reflecting assets relating to aerospace equipment and the previously announced Dell Europe
platform sale in Vendor Finance.

See Non-interest Income Impairment on assets held for sale , Expenses Depreciation on operating lease equipment and Concentrations
Operating Leases for additional information.

() Net operating lease revenue and average operating lease equipment are non-GAAP measures; see reconciliation of non-GAAP to GAAP
financial information.
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CREDIT METRICS

Portfolio credit quality trends remained stable at favorable levels in the third quarter, as nonaccrual loans declined from the prior-year quarter
and sequentially, and charge-offs remained at low levels. The improvement was broad based across the segments. Management continues to
believe that credit metrics are at, or near, cycle lows, and does not expect sustained improving trends from these levels. Given current levels,
sequential quarterly movements in non-accrual loans and charge-offs in Corporate Finance, Trade Finance and Transportation Finance are
subject to volatility around longer term trends if larger accounts migrate in and out of non-accrual status or get resolved. We do not expect as
significant quarter-over-quarter movement in these metrics for Vendor Finance given the smaller ticket, flow nature of this business.

Non-accrual loans in our commercial segments declined 55% and 9% from the prior-year quarter and the prior quarter, respectively, to $412
million, or 2.48% as a percentage of finance receivables. On a consolidated basis, including U.S. government-guaranteed student loans, the
non-accrual percentage was 2.02% at September 30, 2012, versus 4.19% in the prior-year quarter and 2.26% last quarter. As a percentage of
average finance receivables, net charge-offs in the Commercial segments were 0.44% ($18 million), versus 1.21% ($46 million) in the third
quarter of 2011 and 0.42% ($17 million) last quarter. For the nine months, net charge-offs in the Commercial segments were $56 million
(0.47%), versus $239 million (2.03%) in 2011, with the improvement largely in Corporate Finance. For the year, recoveries were approximately
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35% below 2011, with the majority of the reduction in Vendor Finance. See the tables that follow for additional details by segment.

There was no provision for credit losses in the third quarter, as a decline in required reserves essentially offset net charge-offs. The provision for
credit losses for the 2012 quarter and year to date continued to compare favorably to the 2011 comparable periods, with variances largely
reflecting lower net charge-offs. The sequential quarter decline reflects a reduction in non-specific reserves. The decline in required reserves in
the past two quarters reflects improved portfolio credit quality, including the continued replacement of lower credit quality legacy assets with
new origination volume.

As a result of adopting FSA, the allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2009 was eliminated and effectively recorded as discounts on loans
as part of the fair value of finance receivables. A portion of the discount attributable to embedded credit losses was recorded as non-accretable
discount and is utilized as such losses occur, primarily on impaired, nonaccrual loans. Any incremental deterioration of loans in this group above
the remaining discount results in incremental provisions or charge-offs. Improvements or increases in forecasted cash flows in excess of the
non-accretable discount will reduce any allowance on the loan established after emergence from bankruptcy. Once such allowance (if any) has
been reduced and the account is returned to accruing status, the non-accretable discount is reclassified to accretable discount and is recorded as
finance income over the remaining life of the account. For performing pre-emergence loans, an allowance for loan losses is established to the
extent our estimate of inherent loss exceeds the remaining FSA discount. Given the reduction in discount due to accretion and asset liquidations
since emergence, the FSA impact on the allowance for loan losses and reported credit metrics has reduced significantly and will continue to
diminish.

Recoveries of loans charged off pre-emergence (2009 and prior) and loans charged off prior to transfer to held for sale are reflected in other
income. For the quarters ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 and June 30, 2012, the balances totaled $9 million, $36 million and $19 million,
respectively. Comparable amounts for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 totaled $38 million and $94 million, respectively.

The allowance for loan losses is intended to provide for losses inherent in the portfolio based on estimates of the ultimate outcome of collection
efforts, realization of collateral values, and other pertinent factors, such as estimation risk related to performance in prospective periods. We may
make adjustments to the allowance depending on general economic conditions and specific industry weakness or trends in our portfolio credit
metrics, including non-accrual loans and charge-off levels and realization rates on collateral. Our policy is to recognize losses through
charge-offs when there is high likelihood of loss after considering the borrower s financial condition, underlying collateral and guarantees, and
the finalization of collection activities.

Our allowance for loan losses includes: (1) specific reserves for impaired loans, (2) non-specific reserves for estimated losses inherent in
non-impaired loans utilizing the Company s internal probability of default / loss given default ratings system to determine projected loss levels
and (3) if necessary, a qualitative adjustment to the reserve for economic risks, industry and geographic concentrations, estimation risk, model
imprecision and other factors not adequately captured in our methodology. Qualitative adjustments largely relate to instances where management
believes that the Company s current risk ratings in selected portfolios do not fully reflect the corresponding inherent risk. The qualitative
adjustments did not exceed 10% of the total allowance at any of the presented periods and are recorded by class and included in the allowance
for loan losses.
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Management updated and enhanced its credit grading models in the quarter ended June 30, 2012 as part of our model development life cycle.
These updates and enhancements did not have a significant impact on the allowance in the period. See Risk Management for additional
discussion on the new model development and the allowance for loan losses.

The following table presents a roll forward of the allowance for loan losses and provides summarized components of the provision and
allowance:

Allowance for Loan Losses and Provision for Credit Losses (dollars in millions)

Quarters Ended

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

September 30, June 30, September 30,
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Allowance beginning of period
Provision for credit losses(”
Other”)

Net additions

Gross charge-offs
Recoveries®

Net Charge-offs

Allowance end of period
Loans

Commercial Segments
Consumer

Total loans

Allowance

Commercial Segments
Provision for Credit Losses

Specific reserves on commercial impaired

loans

Non-specific reserves commercial

Net charge-offs commercial
Net charge-offs consumer
Total

Allowance for Loan Losses

Specific reserves on commercial impaired loans

Non-specific reserves commercial

Total

Edgar Filing: CIT GROUP INC - Form 10-Q

Quarters Ended
Nine Months Ended
2012 2012 2011 2012 2011
$ 4142 $ 4200 $ 4240 $ 407.8 $ 416.2
8.9 474 51.5 253.9
1.7 2.1 (10.7) (4.6) (14.7)
1.7 11.0 36.7 46.9 239.2
(35.5) (28.0) (71.1) (107.7) (318.8)
17.5 11.2 24.9 50.9 77.9
(18.0) (16.8) (46.2) (56.8) (240.9)
$ 3979 $ 4142 $ 4145 $ 3979 $ 414.5
$16,627.6 $16,202.3 $14,934.1
3,755.8 3,898.2 6,883.3
$20,383.4 $20,100.5 $21,817.4
$ 3979 $ 4142 $ 4145
$ 1.6 $ 9.3 $  (14.8) $ 09 $ (63.2)
(19.6) 17.2) 16.0 (6.2) 76.2
18.0 16.6 45.6 56.3 238.5
0.2 0.6 0.5 2.4
$ $ 8.9 $ 474 $ 515 $ 253.9
September 30, June 30, December 31,
2012 2012 2011
$ 555 $ 539 $ 54.6
342.4 360.3 353.2
$397.9 $414.2 $407.8

M Includes amounts related to reserves on unfunded loan commitments, letters of credit and for deferred purchase agreements, which are
reflected in other liabilities, as well as foreign currency translation adjustments.

2) Recoveries for the quarters ended September 30, 2012, June 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011 do not include $8.6 million, $18.6 million
and $36.3 million, respectively, and for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, do not include $37.6 million and $93.9
million, respectively, of recoveries of loans charged off pre-emergence and loans charged off prior to transfer to held for sale, which are

included in Other Income.
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The allowance for loan losses as a percentage of finance receivables for the Commercial Segments (excluding U.S. government-guaranteed
student loans) were 2.39%, 2.56% and 2.78% as of September 30, 2012, June 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively. This trend reflects
the previously-mentioned replacement of lower credit quality legacy assets that had higher expected losses with new origination volume.
Including the U.S. government guaranteed student loans, which have no related reserves, the comparable consolidated allowance for loan loss
percentages were 1.95%, 2.06% and 1.90%, as of September 30, 2012, June 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively. The rate increase on

55



Edgar Filing: CIT GROUP INC - Form 10-Q

a consolidated basis from prior year reflects a decreasing proportion of student loans, as we have sold these assets over the past year.

Specific reserves were largely unchanged, as both charge-offs and incremental reserve adjustments were relatively modest over the periods
shown and essentially offset.

FSA discount and allowance balances by segment are presented in the following table:

Segment FSA Loans Discount and Allowance for Loan Losses (dollars in millions)

FSA
Finance FSA Non- Finance Allowance Net
Receivables Accretable accretable Receivables for Loan Carrying
pre-FSA Discount Discount(? post-FSA Losses Value

September 30, 2012
Corporate Finance $ 7,909.3 $ (90.0) $(18.9) $ 7,800.4 $247.7) $ 7,552.7
Transportation Finance 1,840.8 (49.9) 1,790.9 (35.0) 1,755.9
Trade Finance 2,408.3 2,408.3 (30.9) 2,377.4
Vendor Finance 4,659.0 (26.1) 4.9) 4,628.0 (84.3) 4,543.7
Commercial Segments 16,817.4 (166.0) (23.8) 16,627.6 (397.9) 16,229.7
Consumer 3,994.0 (235.0) 3.2) 3,755.8 3,755.8
Total $20,811.4 $(401.0) $(27.0) $20,383.4 $(397.9) $19,985.5
June 30, 2012
Corporate Finance $ 7,684.3 $(109.5) $(25.1) $ 7,549.7 $(271.3) $ 7,278.4
Transportation Finance 1,813.1 (56.3) 1,756.8 (28.5) 1,728.3
Trade Finance 2,371.3 2,371.3 (29.8) 2,341.5
Vendor Finance 4,566.2 (35.2) (6.5) 4,524.5 (84.6) 4,439.9
Commercial Segments 16,434.9 (201.0) (31.6) 16,202.3 (414.2) 15,788.1
Consumer 4,153.0 (251.5) 3.3) 3,898.2 3,898.2
Total $20,587.9 $(452.5) $(34.9) $20,100.5 $414.2) $19,686.3
December 31, 2011
Corporate Finance $ 7,089.2 $(178.7) $(47.8) $ 6,862.7 $(262.2) $ 6,600.5
Transportation Finance 1,564.0 (77.0) 1,487.0 (29.3) 1,457.7
Trade Finance 2,431.4 2,431.4 (29.0) 2,402.4
Vendor Finance 4,495.9 (62.8) (11.4) 4,421.7 (87.3) 4,334.4
Commercial Segments 15,580.5 (318.5) (59.2) 15,202.8 (407.8) 14,795.0
Consumer 4,989.3 (303.3) 3.3) 4,682.7 4,682.7
Total $20,569.8 $(621.8) $(62.5) $19,885.5 $(407.8) $19,477.7

() Non-accretable discount includes certain accretable discount amounts relating to non-accrual loans for which accretion has been
suspended.
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The following table presents charge-offs, by business segment. See Results by Business Segment for additional information.

Charge-offs as a Percentage of Average Finance Receivables (dollars in millions)
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Quarters Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, 2012 June 30, 2012 September 30, 2011 September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011
Gross
Charge-offs
Corporate
Finance $10.9 0.57% $ 76 0.41% $45.6 2.66% $ 36.5 0.66% $220.6 4.01%
Transportation
Finance 2.9 0.67% 0.9 0.22% 11.7 0.93% 0.7 0.07%
Trade Finance 3.2 0.53% 1.9 0.33% 43 0.66% 6.6 0.37% 14.6 0.78%
Vendor
Finance 18.5 1.62% 17.2 1.54% 20.3 1.86% 51.9 1.54% 79.6 2.36%
Commercial
Segments 35.5 0.87% 27.6 0.69% 70.2 1.85% 106.7 0.90% 315.5 2.69%
Consumer 0.4 0.03% 0.9 0.05% 1.0 0.03% 33 0.06%
Total $35.5 0.71% $28.0 0.55% $71.1 1.28% $107.7 0.71% $318.8 1.83%
Recoveries(”
Corporate
Finance $ 59 0.31% $ 1.1 0.06% $ 4.7 0.28% $ 183 0.33% $ 243 0.44%
Transportation
Finance 0.1
Trade Finance 3.2 0.53% 0.4 0.07% 2.5 0.38% 4.0 0.22% 10.5 0.56%
Vendor
Finance 8.4 0.74% 9.5 0.85% 17.4 1.60% 28.1 0.83% 42.1 1.25%
Commercial
Segments 17.5 0.43% 11.0 0.27% 24.6 0.64% 50.4 0.43% 77.0 0.66%
Consumer 0.2 0.01% 0.3 0.02% 0.5 0.01% 0.9 0.02%
Total $17.5 0.35% $11.2 0.22% $24.9 0.45% $ 509 0.34% $ 779 0.45%
Net
Charge-offs(”)
Corporate
Finance $ 50 0.26% $ 65 0.35% $40.9 2.38% $ 182 0.33% $196.3 3.57%
Transportation
Finance 2.9 0.67% 0.9 0.22% 11.7 0.93% 0.6 0.07%
Trade Finance 1.5 0.26% 1.8 0.28% 2.6 0.15% 4.1 0.22%
Vendor
Finance 10.1 0.88% 7.7 0.69% 2.9 0.26% 23.8 0.71% 37.5 1.11%
Commercial
Segments 18.0 0.44% 16.6 0.42% 45.6 1.21% 56.3 0.47% 238.5 2.03%
Consumer 0.2 0.02% 0.6 0.03% 0.5 0.02% 2.4 0.04%
Total $18.0 0.36% $16.8 0.33% $46.2 0.83% $ 56.8 0.37% $240.9 1.38%

() Net charge-offs do not include recoveries of loans charged off pre-emergence and loans charged off prior to transfer to held for sale, which
are recorded in Other Income.

Gross and net charge-offs were well below the prior-year periods, reflective of our improved portfolio credit quality. Reported recoveries
(recoveries on post emergence charge-offs), while down from the prior year, remained relatively strong at $18 million and $51 million for the
current quarter and nine months, respectively.

The majority of the improvement was in Corporate Finance, as the prior year included high charge-offs from loans in the energy sector. Trade
Finance continued to experience low levels of customer and client charge-offs during the current period. The charge-offs in Transportation
Finance were related to an aerospace account secured by aviation equipment. The Vendor Finance net charge-off trends reflected a decline in
recoveries and a modest increase in international charge-offs in the third quarter.
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The tables below present information on non-performing loans, which includes non-performing loans in assets held for sale for each period:

Non-accrual and Accruing Past Due Loans (dollars in millions)

September 30, June 30, December 31,
2012 2012 2011
Non-accrual loans
U.S. $323.1 $409.4 $623.3
Foreign 88.6 45.1 77.8
Commercial Segments 411.7 454.5 701.1
Consumer 0.3 0.4 0.9
Non-accrual loans $412.0 $454.9 $702.0
Troubled Debt Restructurings
U.S. $295.3 $307.5 $427.5
Foreign 26.2 32.8 17.7
Restructured loans $321.5 $340.3 $445.2
Accruing loans past due 90 days or more
Government guaranteed accruing student loans past due 90 days or
more $248.1 $251.1 $390.3
Other accruing loans past due 90 days or more 10.7 2.0 22
Accruing loans past due 90 days or more $258.8 $253.1 $392.5
Segment Non-accrual Loans as a Percentage of Finance Receivables (dollars in millions)
September 30, 2012 June 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Corporate Finance $255.6 3.28% $315.9 4.18% $497.9 7.26%
Transportation Finance 552 3.08% 17.3 0.99% 45.0 3.03%
Trade Finance 27.2 1.13% 47.8 2.01% 75.3 3.10%
Vendor Finance 73.7 1.59% 73.5 1.62% 82.9 1.88%
Commercial Segments 411.7 2.48% 454.5 2.80% 701.1 4.61%
Consumer 0.3 0.01% 0.4 0.01% 0.9 0.02%
Total $412.0 2.02% $454.9 2.26% $702.0 3.53%

The decline in non-accrual loans continued in the third quarter, as non-accrual loans as a percentage of finance receivables in the commercial

segments were 2.48% at September 30, 2012, improved from 2.80% last quarter and 4.61% at December 31, 2011. The improvement was driven
largely by Corporate Finance and Trade Finance, as declines in Vendor Finance were more modest and Transportation Finance reflected the

addition of one loan secured by commercial aircraft during the quarter.
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The decline in Corporate Finance from the prior year included the benefit of a multi-phased structured sale that was completed in the 2012 first
quarter. The further improvement in Corporate Finance, and the declines in Trade Finance over the past two quarters, reflected liquidations,
successful work-out efforts, accounts returned to accrual status following a period of improved performance and a relatively low level of
migration of new accounts into non-accrual status.

Approximately 77% of our non-accrual accounts were current in payments at September 30, 2012, and our impaired loan carrying value
(including FSA discount, specific reserves and charge-offs) to estimated outstanding contractual balances approximated 68%. For this purpose,
impaired loans are comprised principally of non-accrual loans over $500,000 and troubled debt restructurings ( TDRs ).
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Foregone Interest on Non-accrual Loans and Troubled Debt Restructurings (dollars in millions)

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012 Nine Months Ended September 30, 2011
U.S. Foreign Total U.S. Foreign Total
Interest revenue that would have been earned
at original terms $70.0 $9.4 $79.4 $153.8 $19.1 $172.9
Less: Interest recorded 17.4 2.6 20.0 18.0 4.3 22.3
Foregone interest revenue $52.6 $6.8 $59.4 $135.8 $14.8 $150.6

The Company periodically modifies the terms of loans / finance receivables in response to borrowers difficulties. Modifications that include a
financial concession to the borrower, which otherwise would not have been considered, are accounted for as troubled debt restructurings. For
accounts that were modified but not considered to be TDRs, it was determined that no concessions had been granted by CIT to the borrower.
Borrower compliance with the modified terms is the primary measurement that we use to determine the success of these programs.

The tables that follow reflect loan carrying values as of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 of accounts that have been modified.

Troubled Debt Restructurings and Modifications (dollars in millions)

September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Excluding % Excluding %
FSA Including FSA  Compliant(?) FSA Including FSA  Compliant(?)

Troubled Debt Restructurings

Deferral of principal and/or interest $296.9 $280.5 94% $461.8 $394.8 94%
Debt forgiveness 52 4.9 98% 17.9 12.5 96%
Interest rate reductions 15.1 15.0 100% 24.6 19.0 100%
Covenant relief and other 23.2 21.1 79% 27.0 18.9 77%
Total TDRs $3404 $321.5 93% $531.3 $4452 94%
Percent non accrual 37% 35% 66% 63%

Excluding % Excluding %

Modifications® FSA Compliant(!) FSA Compliant(!)

Extended maturity $148.0 97% $183.6 100%

Covenant relief 148.8 100% 157.4 100%

59



Edgar Filing: CIT GROUP INC - Form 10-Q

September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Interest rate increase/additional
collateral 100% 14.9 100%
Deferment of principal 0.3 100%
Other 70% 120.4 100%
Total Modifications $424.1 96% $476.6 100%
Percent non-accrual 10%

) 9% Compliant is calculated using carrying values including FSA for Troubled Debt Restructurings and carrying values excluding FSA for

Modifications.

) Table depicts the predominant element of each modification, which may contain several of the characteristics listed.

See Note 2 Loans for additional information regarding TDRs.
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NON-INTEREST INCOME

Non-interest Income (dollars in millions)

Rental income on operating leases
Other Income:

Gains on loan and portfolio sales
Factoring commissions

Gains on sales of leasing equipment
Counterparty receivable accretion

Fee revenues

Recoveries of loans charged off pre-emergence
and loans charged off prior to transfer to held for
sale

Other revenues

Gain on investment sales
(Losses) gains on derivatives and foreign
currency exchange

Impairment on assets held for sale
Total other income
Total non-interest income

Quarters Ended
Nine Months Ended
September September September 30,
30, June 30, 30,
2012 2012 2011 2012 2011
$444.4 $445.5 $409.0 $1,329.2 $1,238.1
5.5 26.5 53.7 177.4 221.6
33.1 28.9 35.5 94.3 100.2
33.3 23.2 72.8 76.0 129.8
3.3 44.8 26.3 57.1 86.4
16.1 18.3 18.3 51.4 60.2
8.6 18.6 36.3 37.6 93.9
3.0 12.8 29.2 33.4 65.8
5.0 4.4 8.5 28.5 35.7
1.0 4.6) (17.5) 2.9) 3.7)
(27.7) (28.9) (20.3) (78.2) (43.3)
81.2 144.0 242.8 474.6 746.6
$525.6 $589.5 $651.8 $1,803.8 $1,984.7
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Total Non-interest Income includes Rental Income on Operating Leases and Other income. The change from the prior quarter in Rental income

on operating leases is discussed in Net Finance Revenues and Financing and Leasing Assets  Results by Business Segment . See also
Concentrations Operating Leases for additional information on operating leases. The declines in Other Income for the quarter and nine months

ended September 30, 2012 reflect the following:

Gains on loan and portfolio sales fluctuate based on the volume and types of loans sold. Sales activity for the 2012 third quarter totaled nearly
$85 million and was primarily in Corporate Finance ($5 million gain). Sales activity for the 2012 second quarter totaled over $1.1 billion and
consisted of $1.1 billion in Consumer (primarily student loans; $14 million gain) and $0.1 billion in Corporate Finance ($11 million gain). Third
quarter 2011 sales totaled approximately $260 million and included $136 million in Vendor Finance, most of which were finance receivables in
Europe, and $121 million in Corporate Finance.

Factoring commissions increased sequentially reflecting seasonal trends but declined from prior year comparable periods on lower factoring
volume.

Gains on sales of leasing equipment resulted from sales of $277 million of equipment in the current quarter as part of our normal fleet and
residual management activities, versus $341 million last quarter and $466 million in the 2011 third quarter. Equipment sales in the current
quarter consisted of $134 million in Transportation Finance assets (mostly aerospace related), $81 million in Corporate Finance assets and $62
million in Vendor Finance assets. Gains as a percentage of equipment sold increased from last quarter, largely related to Transportation Finance
sales, and decreased slightly from prior year quarter. Gains vary based on the type and age of equipment sold, among other factors.

Counterparty receivable accretion primarily relates to the FSA accretion of a fair value discount on the receivable from Goldman Sachs
International ( GSI ) related to the GSI Facilities (as defined in Funding, Liquidity and Capital). The discount is accreted into income over the
expected term of the payout of the associated receivables. FSA accretion on the counterparty receivable was accelerated during the 2012 second
quarter to reflect a return of cash to CIT due to higher valuation of pledged assets in the GSI Facilities. See Fresh Start Accounting, Funding,
Liquidity and Capital and Note 5  Long-term Borrowings and Note 6  Derivative Financial Instruments in Item 1 Consolidated Financial
Statements for information on GSI Facilities.

Fee revenues are primarily comprised of servicing fees, letters of credit fees, documentation and wire transfer fees and advisory fees, mainly in
Corporate Finance.

Recoveries of loans charged off pre-emergence and loans charged off prior to transfer to held for sale reflects repayments or other workout
resolutions on loans charged off prior to emergence from bankruptcy and loans charged off prior to classification as held for sale. Unlike
recoveries on loans charged off after our restructuring, these recoveries are recorded as other income, not as a reduction to the provision for loan
losses. The decrease from the 2012 second quarter is due to lower recoveries in Corporate Finance, while the decline from the prior year reflects
a general downward trend as the Company moves further away from its emergence date.
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Other revenues include items that are more periodic in nature, such as proceeds received in excess of carrying value on non-accrual accounts
held for sale, which were repaid or had another workout resolution, and insurance proceeds in excess of carrying value on damaged leased
equipment, and also includes insurance premiums earned as well as income from joint ventures. The current quarter amount is down from the
comparable 2011 quarter, which included proceeds received in excess of carrying value on non-accrual accounts held for sale of $15 million as
compared to $1 million in the current quarter. Other revenues for the first nine-months of 2011 also includes $11 million in the second quarter
2011 related to a change in the aircraft order book and corresponding acceleration of FSA.

Gains on investment sales reflect sales of equity investments, primarily in Corporate Finance. 2012 year-to-date gains include an $11 million
gain in the first quarter related to securities in the Corporate Finance portfolio sale.

(Losses) gains on derivatives and foreign currency exchange are largely driven by transactional exposures and economic hedges that do not
qualify for hedge accounting, which resulted in a net $1 million gain for the current quarter. The net loss in the second quarter of 2012 and third
quarter of 2011 reflected unfavorable currency movements offsetting net gains on derivative instruments. See Note 6  Derivative Financial
Instruments for additional information on derivatives.

Impairment on assets held for sale in the third quarter 2012 primarily included $20 million of impairment charges related to Vendor Finance
operating lease equipment that was transferred to held for sale in 2011 and $6 million related to aerospace operating lease equipment. The prior
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quarter primarily included $20 million related to Vendor Finance operating lease equipment and $9 million of Transportation Finance
equipment, mostly aerospace assets. Third quarter 2011 impairment of $20 million related primarily to Vendor Finance operating lease
equipment. The year-to-date impairment is also primarily related to Vendor Finance with $60 million for 2012 and $40 million for 2011, and
also includes Transportation equipment impairment of $16 million in 2012 and none in 2011. When a long-lived asset is classified as held for
sale, depreciation expense is suspended and the asset is evaluated for impairment with any such charge recorded in other income. (See Expenses
for related discussion on depreciation on operating lease equipment.)

EXPENSES

Other Expenses (dollars in millions)

Quarters Ended
Nine Months Ended
September September September 30,
30, June 30, 30,
2012 2012 2011 2012 2011
Depreciation on operating lease equipment $134.5 $130.7 $124.3 $ 4027 $ 4377
Salaries and general operating expenses:
Compensation and benefits 138.5 136.7 136.1 408.8 377.4
Technology 19.4 17.8 16.4 56.0 532
Professional fees 18.1 13.3 29.6 51.4 95.6
Net occupancy expense 9.2 9.8 9.9 28.1 29.7
Provision for severance and facilities exiting
activities 5.0 1.4 0.5 10.9 8.0
Other expenses 473 61.2 339 145.8 105.9
Operating expenses 237.5 240.2 226.4 701.0 669.8
Loss on debt extinguishments 16.8 21.5 146.6 61.2 146.6
Total other expenses $388.8 $392.4 $497.3 $1,164.9 $1,254.1
Headcount 3,630 3,570 3,480

Depreciation on operating lease equipment is recognized on owned equipment over the lease term or estimated useful life of the asset.
Impairments recorded on equipment held in portfolio are reported as depreciation expense. Depreciation expense is suspended on operating lease
equipment once it is transferred to held for sale. While in held for sale, the Company tests for impairment, and charges are recorded in Other
Income. The amount of depreciation not recognized on operating lease equipment in assets held for sale, which mostly relates to Vendor
Finance, totaled $26 million for the third quarter 2012 ($20 million for Vendor Finance and $6 million for Transportation Finance assets), $21
million last quarter and $23 million for the third quarter 2011. Year to date, suspended depreciation totaled $68 million for 2012 ($60 million for
Vendor Finance and $8 million for Transportation Finance assets) and $48 million for 2011. Depreciation expense is also driven by asset mix.
The Transportation Finance operating lease equipment portfolio has been growing, while the shorter-term portfolios in Vendor Finance and
Corporate Finance have declined. Depreciation expense includes a component of FSA adjustments. FSA adjustments reduced
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depreciation expense by $50 million in the current quarter, $54 million last quarter, and $59 million in the 2011 third quarter. Year to date,
depreciation FSA adjustments totaled $161 million for 2012 and $181 million for 2011. See Net Finance Revenues . See also Financing and
Leasing Assets  Results by Business Segment and Concentrations Operating Leases for additional information.

Operating expenses reflect the following:
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Compensation and benefits increased slightly from last quarter and the prior year quarter. Headcount at September 30, 2012 was up 4% from
the prior-year quarter and less than 2% sequentially.

Professional fees included legal and other professional fees such as tax, audit, and consulting services. The sequential quarter increase is the
result of a reduction in second quarter expenses due to amounts received on favorable legal and tax resolutions, while the decline from the
2011 periods reflects lower consulting costs for risk management and other projects.

Provision for severance and facilities exiting activities reflects various organization efficiency and cost reduction initiatives. Severance costs
include employee termination benefits incurred in conjunction with these initiatives. The facility exiting activities primarily relate to location
closings and facility consolidation charges. The current quarter provision primarily relates to severance.

Other expenses in the prior quarter included $14 million for the establishment of an indemnification reserve related to pre-emergence
consumer asset sales that occurred prior to 2005. Bank deposit related expenses were $10 million, down slightly from the prior quarter, and
year-to-date these costs are up approximately $20 million over 2011.

Losses on debt extinguishments in the current and prior quarter reflect accelerated fees and underwriting costs related to liability management
actions taken during the quarters. The 2011 third quarter loss is primarily due to the write-off of original issue discount and fees associated with
the repayment of the first lien term loan.

FRESH START ACCOUNTING

Upon emergence from bankruptcy in 2009, CIT applied Fresh Start Accounting (FSA) in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America (GAAP), which is detailed in Note 1 ~ Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and
Note 26  Fresh Start Accounting of our 2011 Form 10-K. Accretion and amortization of certain FSA adjustments are reflected in operating
results as briefly described below.

FSA remains a considerable factor on our Net Finance Revenue, while the impact on Credit Metrics trends has lessened. Net finance revenue
reflects the accretion of the FSA adjustments to the loans and leases, as well as to our debt. As the FSA related to debt redemptions diminishes,
the remaining amortization of long-term borrowings FSA discount (most of which is on secured borrowings) will more closely match the
accretion of FSA discount on loans, therefore, reducing volatility of net finance revenue.

Given the impact of FSA on CIT s financial statements and to a lesser extent, credit metrics, the results are generally not comparable with those
of other financial institutions.

The following table presents FSA adjustments by balance sheet caption:

Accretable Fresh Start Accounting (Discount) / Premium (dollars in millions)

September 30, June 30, December 31, September 30,
2012 2012 2011 2011
Loans $ (401.0) $ 4525) $ (621.8) $ (830.7)
Operating lease equipment, net (2,610.6) (2,670.9) (2,803.1) (2,837.5)
Intangible assets, net 37.3 423 63.6 73.5
Other assets (56.0) (59.3) (113.1) (139.1)
Total assets $(3,030.3) $(3,140.4) $(3,474.4) $(3,733.8)
Deposits $ 5.2 $ 7.1 $ 145 $ 193
Long-term borrowings (519.8) (1,016.3) (2,018.9) (2,288.6)
Other liabilities 4.4 6.5 25.7 37.3
Total liabilities $ (510.2) $(1,002.7) $(1,978.7) $(2,232.0)

Interest income is increased by the FSA accretion on loans, which as of September 30, 2012 primarily relates to Consumer ($0.2 billion). Due to
the contractual maturity of the underlying loans, the majority of the accretion on consumer loans will be over a longer time period, generally 10

63



Edgar Filing: CIT GROUP INC - Form 10-Q

years, while most commercial loan accretion income will be realized within the next 2 years. In addition to the yield related accretion on loans,
the decline in accretable balance has been accelerated, primarily as a result of asset sales. The non-accretable discount was $27 million at
September 30, 2012.
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Interest expense is increased by the accretion of the FSA balance on long-term borrowings, which is recognized over the time to contractual
maturity of the underlying debt. We have repaid debt prior to its contractual maturity, and the repayments were accounted for as a debt
extinguishment, therefore accretion of the FSA discount on the underlying debt was accelerated. If the repayments had been accounted for as a
debt modification, the FSA discount would have been amortized over the term of the new financing on an effective yield method. The maturity
dates for the secured borrowings range from 2012 2040. Approximately 80% of the discount is expected to be recognized by the end of 2021.

The following table summarizes the estimated scheduled FSA accretion on the secured borrowings, and other debt and deposits, as of September
30, 2012. The table assumes repayment of long-term borrowings and deposits on their scheduled due date, but could be different as described
above. Differences will occur if contractual cash flows related to assets underlying the secured borrowings are received faster than obligated.
The differences from the estimates could vary materially and are inherently subject to significant uncertainties that may be beyond the

Company s control.

FSA Long-term Borrowings and Deposit (Discount) / Premium Accretion (dollars in millions)

Outstanding
FSA Remaining 2016 and
Balance 2012 2013 2014 2015 Thereafter
Secured Borrowings $(471.8) $(12.5) $(70.1) $(62.3) $(53.4) $(273.5)
Other Debt (48.0) 0.6) (2.1) 2.4) 2.8) (40.1)
Deposits 5.2 1.7 43 0.6 0.4) (1.0)
Total $(514.6) $(11.4) $(67.9) $(64.1) $(56.6) $(314.6)

Depreciation expense is reduced by the accretion of the operating lease equipment discount, essentially all of which is related to Transportation
Finance aircraft and rail operating lease assets. We estimated an economic average life before disposal of these assets of approximately 15 years
for aerospace assets and 30 years for rail assets.

In conjunction with FSA, operating lease rentals were adjusted as of the Convenience Date. As a result, an intangible asset was recorded to
adjust these contracts that were, in aggregate, above then current market rental rates. These adjustments (net) will be amortized, thereby
lowering rental income (a component of Other Income) over the remaining term of the lease agreements on a straight line basis. The majority of
the remaining accretion has a contractual maturity of less than two years.

Other assets relates primarily to a discount on receivables from GSI in conjunction with the GSI Facilities. The discount is accreted into income
over the expected payout of the associated receivables. See Funding, Liquidity and Capital , Note 5 Long-term Borrowings, and Note 6
Derivative Financial Instruments in Item 1 Consolidated Financial Statements for information on GSI Facilities.
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The following table summarizes the impact of accretion and amortization of FSA adjustments on the Consolidated Statement of Operations for
the quarters and nine months ended September 30:
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Accretion/(Amortization) of Fresh Start Accounting Adjustments (dollars in millions)

Quarter Ended September 30, 2012

Corporate
Corporate  Transportation Trade Vendor and Total
Finance Finance Finance Finance Consumer Other CIT

Interest income $ 26.9 $ 59 $ $ 10.6 $ 157 $ $ 59.1
Interest expense (76.7) (246.1) (16.7) (61.4) (22.9) (70.9) (494.7)
Rental income on operating
leases 4.9) 4.9)
Depreciation expense 0.6 48.8 0.4 49.8
FSA-net finance revenue (49.2) (196.3) (16.7) (50.4) (7.2) (70.9) (390.7)
Other income 2.5 0.5 0.3 3.3
Total $(46.7) $(195.8) $(16.7) $(50.4) $ (6.9) $(70.9) $(387.4)

Item 2: Management s Discussion and Analysis and Item 3: Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk 53
L

Table of Contents

INCOME TAXES

Income Tax Data (dollars in millions)

Quarters Ended
Nine Months Ended
September September 30,
30, June 30, September 30,

2012 2012 2011 2012 2011
Provision for income taxes, before discrete items $50 $ 14.1 $ 38.4 $55.0 $111.2
Discrete items (Tax liability releases/NOL
valuation adjustments/Changes in uncertain tax
liabilities) 2.1) 13.7 1.8 15.6 12.6
Provision for income taxes $29 $ 27.8 $ 40.2 $70.6 $123.8
Effective tax rate Total (1.0)% (66.7)% 591.2% 9.4)% 112.8%
Effective tax rate Total excluding discrete items (1.7% (33.8)% 564.7% (7.3)% 101.3%

The Company s third quarter tax provision of $2.9 million decreased from $27.8 million in the prior quarter and $40.2 million in the prior-year
quarter. The decrease was primarily driven by a reduction in foreign tax expense on the international income and was mainly related to the
change in geographic mix of earnings and a benefit related to discrete items.

The Company s tax provision of $70.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 decreased from $123.8 million in the prior year
period. This decrease was primarily a result of the reduction in foreign tax expense on international income due to the change in the geographic
mix of earnings. The year-to-date provision reflects income tax expense on the earnings of certain international operations and no income tax
benefit recorded on the domestic losses. The Company has not recognized any tax benefit on its domestic losses due to uncertainties related to
future utilization of net operating loss carry-forwards. The actual year-end 2012 effective tax rate may vary from the currently projected tax rate
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due to changes in the mix of domestic and international earnings.

The tax provision for the third quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2012 included $(2.1) million and $15.6 million, respectively, of
discrete tax expense (benefit) items. Included in the discrete items for the year to date period is $31.6 million of incremental taxes mainly
associated with international audit settlements and an increase in a U.S. deferred tax liability on certain indefinite life assets that cannot be used
as a source of future taxable income in the assessment of the domestic valuation allowance. The year-to-date tax provision also includes a $16
million reduction to the provision for income taxes associated with the correction of certain foreign tax accruals relating to prior periods. The net
discrete tax expense also included a tax benefit of $146.5 million caused by a release of tax reserves established on an uncertain tax position
taken on certain tax losses following a favorable ruling from the tax authorities and a $98.4 million tax benefit associated with a tax position
taken on a prior-year restructuring transaction which was addressed during the second quarter. Both of the aforementioned benefits were fully
offset by corresponding increases to the domestic valuation allowance.

As of December 31, 2011, CIT had cumulative U.S. federal net operating loss carry-forwards (NOLs) of $4.0 billion. The release of the above
mentioned uncertain tax positions will allow for the recognition of approximately $605 million of additional U.S. federal NOLs. Excluding FSA
adjustments, which are not included in the calculation of U.S. federal taxable income, the Company generated a domestic pretax loss in the third
quarter and year-to-date of $6 million and $210 million, respectively, which will also increase the NOLs. Pursuant to Section 382 of the Internal
Revenue Code, the Company is generally subject to a $230 million annual limitation on the use of its $1.9 billion of pre-emergence NOLs.
NOLs arising in post-emergence years are not subject to this limitation absent another ownership change for U.S. tax purposes.

Liabilities for Uncertain Tax Position

The Company s liability for uncertain tax positions totaled $313 million at September 30, 2012 and $549 million at December 31, 2011.
Management estimates that this liability may be reduced by up to $10 million within the next twelve months. The change in the balance since
December 31, 2011 occurred primarily in the second quarter and was comprised of two items: 1.) a reduction of $146.5 million caused by a
release of tax reserves established on an uncertain tax position taken on certain tax losses following a favorable ruling from the tax authorities,
and 2.) a reduction of $98.4 million associated with a tax position taken on a prior-year restructuring transaction which was addressed during the
quarter. Both of the aforementioned benefits were fully offset by corresponding increases to the domestic valuation allowance.
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RESULTS BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

Information about our segments is also in Item 1, Note 13  Business Segment Information. Risks associated with the services provided by our
segments are discussed in Business Segments section of Item 1 Business Overview in the 2011 Form 10-K.

Though three of our four commercial segments reported pretax losses for the first nine months of 2012, these results were primarily driven by
FSA accretion associated with accelerated debt repayments. As discussed below, excluding these amounts, all operating segments other than
Vendor Finance were profitable for the first nine months.

Corporate Finance

Corporate Finance s middle-market lending business in the U.S. and Canada provides lending, leasing and other financial and advisory services
to the middle market sector, with a focus on specific industries, including Communications, Energy, Entertainment, Healthcare, Industrials,
Information Services & Technology, Restaurants, Retail, and Sports & Gaming. We also have specialized business units focusing on small
business lending in the U.S., and on financial sponsors in Europe. In 2011, Corporate Finance began select commercial real estate lending and
equipment financing. Revenue is generated primarily from interest earned on loans, supplemented by fees collected on services provided.

Pre-tax income (dollars in millions)

Quarters Ended

Nine Months Ended
September 30, June 30, September 30, September 30,
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Quarters Ended
Nine Months Ended
2012 2012 2011 2012 2011
Earnings Summary
Interest income $ 140.1 $ 171.1 $ 189.0 $ 487.0 $ 7177
Interest expense (146.9) (130.9) (165.7) (496.0) (554.9)
Provision for credit losses 22.0 (7.7) (37.7) (8.4) (163.0)
Rental income on operating leases 1.7 2.3 4.1 6.8 14.1
Other income 24.6 76.7 93.1 302.3 362.6
Depreciation on operating lease equipment (1.0) (1.2) (1.7) 3.3) (6.3)
Other expenses, excluding depreciation (65.8) (60.8) (51.5) (193.9) (169.4)
Income (loss) before provision for income
taxes $ (25.3) $ 495 $ 296 $ 945 $ 200.8
Pre-tax Income Excluding Accelerated
FSA Net Discount/(Premium) on Debt
Extinguishments and Repurchases(” $ 445 $ 935 $ 299 $ 3154 $ 2303
Select Average Balances
Average finance receivables (AFR) $7,682.9 $7,374.2 $6,857.9 $7,368.4 $7,321.7
Average earning assets (AEA) 7,792.3 7,459.5 7,287.0 7,481.6 7,625.0
Statistical Data
Net finance revenue (interest and rental
income, net of interest and depreciation
expense) as a % of AEA 0.31)% 2.21% 1.41% 0.10)% 2.98%
Funded new business volume $ 903.4 $ 969.4 $ 659.7 $2,910.9 $1,781.5

M Non-GAAP measurement, see Non-GAAP Measurements for a reconciliation on non-GAAP to GAAP financial information.

Pre-tax earnings were impacted by accelerated debt FSA discount accretion of $70 million in the current quarter, which resulted from debt
prepayment activities, compared to less than $1 million in the 2011 third quarter and $44 million last quarter. Excluding accelerated debt FSA
discount accretion, pre-tax income rose from the prior-year quarter, reflecting lower funding costs and lower credit costs, and was down from
last quarter, on lower other income (primarily due to lower FSA accretion on a counterparty receivable). Year to date results, excluding
accelerated FSA interest expense related to debt extinguishments, were up from last year on lower funding costs and credit costs, and higher
gains on asset sales, partially offset by lower net FSA accretion.

Committed new business volume increased 9% from the prior-year quarter to $1.2 billion and was up 39% year to date to $4.0 billion. CIT Bank
originated the vast majority of the 2012 U.S. funded volume, 95% for the 2012 third quarter, up from 90% in the prior-year quarter. Over $4.5
billion or 57% of Corporate Finance financing and leasing assets were in CIT Bank at September 30, 2012. Third quarter 2012 new business
yields in Corporate Finance remained relatively stable within product types.

Other highlights included:

Excluding accelerated debt FSA discount accretion, net finance revenue (interest income and rental income on operating leases, net of
interest expense and
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depreciation expense) was $64 million, up from $26 million in the prior-year quarter reflecting lower funding costs (including the benefit
from the increasing amount of assets in CIT Bank) and higher assets. On this basis, NFR was down from $85 million last quarter on lower
net FSA accretion, lower interest recoveries and lower prepayment income. Year to date 2012 totaled $215 million, up from $201 million in
the prior-year. FSA accretion, absent the accelerated debt FSA discount accretion, increased net finance revenue by $21 million for the
current quarter, compared to increases of $19 million in the prior-year quarter and $29 million last quarter. FSA discount accretion, absent
the accelerated debt FSA discount accretion, increased 2012 NFR year to date by $80 million, down from $102 million in 2011.

Other income was down from the prior year and prior quarter on lower FSA counterparty receivable accretion and lower recoveries on
pre-emergence charge-offs. For the quarter, FSA accretion on a counterparty receivable was $3 million, down from $20 million in the
prior-year quarter and $34 million last quarter. FSA accretion was accelerated during the 2012 second quarter as a result of the return of cash
to CIT from a reduction in the TRS counterparty receivable due to higher revaluation of pledged assets in the GSI Facilities. Other income
also included $2 million from recoveries of loans charged off pre-emergence and loans charged off prior to transfer to held for sale, down
from $28 million in the prior-year quarter and $12 million last quarter. Other income included $12 million of gains on asset sales, including
investments, as compared to $20 million of gains last year and $17 million of gains last quarter.

Credit trends remained positive. Non-accrual loans declined to $256 million from $674 million in the prior-year quarter, primarily on sales
and collections, and $316 million in the prior quarter. Net charge-offs were $5 million, down from $41 million in the prior-year quarter and
$7 million in the prior quarter. Year to date 2012 net charge-offs were $18 million, down significantly from $196 million in 2011. The year
to date 2012 provision for credit losses reflect reserves established on loan originations. The allowance for loan losses release in the third
quarter reflected improved portfolio credit quality.

Financing and leasing assets totaled $7.9 billion, a 3% increase from the prior quarter and 11% year to date, as new business volume offset
sales and portfolio collections. Approximately 65% of U.S. financing and leasing assets are in CIT Bank.

Transportation Finance

Transportation Finance primarily leases commercial aircraft to airlines globally and rail equipment to North American operators, and provides
other financing to these and other customers in the transportation and defense sectors. Revenue is generated from rents collected on leased
assets, and to a lesser extent from interest on loans, fees, and gains from assets sold.

Pre-tax income (dollars in millions)

Quarters Ended
Nine Months Ended
September 30,
September 30, June 30, September 30,
2012 2012 2011 2012 2011
Earnings Summary
Interest income $ 34.1 $ 355 $ 37.3 $ 103.6 $ 1234
Interest expense (374.7) (288.4) (202.3) (1,122.0) (663.6)
Provision for credit losses (8.9) 0.1) 2.2) (16.6) (8.7)
Rental income on operating leases 386.2 382.9 342.2 1,143.8 1,007.2
Other income 18.4 14.5 57.0 46.2 110.1
Depreciation on operating lease
equipment (106.3) (101.9) (90.7) (316.1) (280.2)
Other expenses, excluding
depreciation (43.5) (42.7) (43.3) (132.0) (120.4)
Income (loss) before (provision)
benefit for income taxes $  (94.7) $ 0.2) $ 98.0 $ (293.1) $ 1678
Pre-tax Income Excluding
Accelerated FSA Net
Discount/(Premium) on Debt
Extinguishments and Repurchases/!) $ 1344 $ 1293 $ 994 $ 3443 $ 218.0
Select Average Balances
Average finance receivables (AFR) $ 1,742.9 $ 1,722.8 $ 1,358.5 $ 1,678.9 $ 1,359.8
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Quarters Ended
Nine Months Ended

Average operating leases (AOL) 11,781.3 11,773.1 10,738.8 11,774.1 10,662.2
Average earning assets (AEA) 13,906.2 13,688.3 12,253.6 13,664.9 12,159.8
Statistical Data
Net finance revenue (interest and
rental income, net of interest and
depreciation expense) as a % of AEA (1.75)% 0.82% 2.82% (1.86)% 2.05%
Operating lease margin as a % of AOL 9.50% 9.55% 9.37% 9.37% 9.09%
Funded new business volume $ 5628 $ 6400 $ 5578 $ 1,492.5 $ 1,274.5

() Non-GAAP measurement, see Non-GAAP Measurements for a reconciliation on non-GAAP to GAAP financial information.
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